Public Document Pack

2 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for
Environment (including Transport)

Thursday, 12 April 2018 at 10.00 am
Committee Rooms 1 & 2, County Hall, New Road, Oxford

Items for Decision

The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed
overleaf with related reports attached. Decisions taken will become effective at the end
of the working day on Friday 20 April 2018 unless called in by that date for review by the
appropriate Scrutiny Committee.

Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council.

These proceedings are open to the public

/G Clot

Peter G. Clark
Chief Executive April 2018

Committee Officer:  Graham Warrington
Tel: 07393 001211; E-Mail:
graham.warrington@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Note: Date of next meeting: 10 May 2018

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible
before the meeting.




Page 2

ltems for Decision

Declarations of Interest

Questions from County Councillors

Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two
working days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the
Cabinet Member’s delegated powers.

The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one
meeting is limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary
guestion at the meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in
total. As with questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the
end of this item will receive a written response.

Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and
will be the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such
other councillor or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not
be the subject of further debate at this meeting. Questions received after the
despatch of the agenda, but before the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of
Addenda circulated at the meeting, together with any written response which is
available at that time.

Petitions and Public Address

Oxford: Various Streets in Barton and Risinghurst Area -
{Proposed Waiting restrictionson Area - Proposed Waiting
Restrictions (Pages 1 - 14)

Forward Plan Ref: 2018/018
Contact: Hugh Potter, Team Leader, Area Operations Hub Tel: (01865) 810228

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery (CMDE4).

The report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to introduce
waiting restrictions on Burchester Avenue, Green Road, London Road Service
Road, The Roundway, Northway and Wick Close, within the Barton and
Risinghurst area of Oxford put forward by local county councillors to address
parking problems in this area.

The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve the
proposals to introduce waiting restrictions on Burchester Avenue, Green
Road, London Road Service Road, The Roundway, Northway and Wick
Close, within the Barton and Risinghurst area of Oxford as advertised.



Page 3

Oxford: Mill Road and Godstow Road at Wovercote - Proposed
Waiting Restrictions (Pages 15 - 20)

Forward Plan Ref: 2018/009
Contact: Hugh Potter, Team Leader, Area Operations Hub Tel: (01865) 810228

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery (CMDES).

The report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to introduce
waiting restrictions on Mill Road and Godstow Road at Wolvercote, Oxford. The
proposal has been put forward as part of a proposed residential development at
Mill Road.

The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to introduce waiting restrictions on Mill Road and Godstow Road
at Wolvercote, Oxford as advertised.

Oxford: Abbey Road and Cripley Place - Proposed Amendments

to Waiting Restrictions and Residents Parking Spaces (Pages 21 -
26)

Forward Plan Ref: 2018/037
Contact: Hugh Potter, Team Leader — Area Operations Hub Tel: 07766 998704

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery (CMDES).

The report presents responses received to a statutory consultation on a proposal
to amend waiting restrictions and residents parking spaces on Abbey Road and
Cripley Place, Oxford put forward as part of a proposed residential development at
Abbey Road.

The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to amend waiting restrictions and residents parking spaces on
Abbey Road and Cripley Place, Oxford as advertised.

North Hinksey - B4044 West Way - Proposed Puffin Crossing
(Pages 27 - 36)

Forward Plan Ref: 2018/010
Contact: Hugh Potter, Team Leader, Area Operations Hub Tel: (01865) 810228

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery (CMDE?7).

The report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to introduce a
new puffin crossing on the B4044 West Way to replace an existing staggered
pelican crossing by the Elms Parade shopping centre put forward as part of a
proposed redevelopment of EIms Parade shopping centre.

The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve the
proposal to introduce a new puffin crossing on the B4044 West Way to



Page 4

replace an existing staggered pelican crossing by the Elms Parade shopping
centre as advertised.

Didcot: Collett and Hawksworth - Proposed Waiting Restrictions
(Pages 37 - 42)

Forward Plan Ref: 2017/044
Contact: Hugh Potter, Team Leader — Area Operations Hub Tel: 07766 998704

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery (CMDES).

The report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to introduce
waiting restrictions on Collett and Hawksworth roads within the Southmead
Industrial Estate at Didcot. The proposals have been put forward as part of a
proposed commercial development at Hawksworth and in response to concerns
over road safety and traffic delays arising from parking on roads within the
Southmead Industrial Estate Station Road.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to introduce waiting restrictions on Collett and Hawksworth roads
within the Southmead Industrial Estate at Didcot as advertised.

Proposed Waiting Restrictions Radley Station, Radley (Pages 43 -
48)

Forward Plan Ref: 2017/029
Contact: Hugh Potter, Team Leader — Area Operations Hub Tel: 07766 998704

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery (CMDED9).

Officers had been aware of local concerns for a number of years about commuter
parking in the vicinity of Radley Station, particularly since the introduction of
charges when the station car park was extended to meet the growing demand for
parking there. Recognising that the station and associated car park management
regime were leading to overspill into local streets, FGW (the operator of the
station) provided funding to facilitate the introduction of restrictions and a number
of meetings were held with Radley Parish Council, the local County Councillor and
local residents to discuss possible options. In 2015 an informal consultation was
carried out throughout the village seeking views on the extent of parking
restrictions and in the light of the responses received an Experimental Order was
introduced in late 2016.

The report considers responses and comments received following the
implementation of that Experimental Traffic Regulation Order introducing parking
restrictions in the vicinity of Radley Station.

An Experimental Traffic Order is one where formal consultation takes place after
the scheme is introduced but prior to deciding whether to make the restrictions
permanent.



10.

11.

Page 5

The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to:-

a) approve the making of a permanent traffic regulation order for the parking
restrictions in Radley that were the subject of the Experimental Order;

b) instruct officers to liaise with Radley Parish Council to develop additional
restrictions, to carry out formal consultation and to report the results of
that consultation to a future meeting (if required).

A420 at Buckland - Proposed Bus Stop Clearway (Pages 49 - 56)

Forward Plan Ref: 2018/025
Contact: Hugh Potter, Team Leader — Area Operations Hub Tel: 07766 998704

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery (CMDEZ10).

The report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to provide bus
stops, including a bus stop clearway on the south side of the road within a layby,
and a pedestrian refuge on the A420 at Buckland, approximately 150 metres north-
east of the Buckland Service Station. The proposal has been put forward as part of
a proposed development on the south side of the A420 at the Buckland Services
site.

The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to provide bus stops, including a bus stop clearway on the south
side of the road within a layby, and a pedestrian refuge on the A420 at
Buckland, approximately 150 metres north-east of the Buckland Service
Station as advertised.

Swinbrook and Widford - Proposed 20mph and 30mph Speed
Limits (Pages 57 - 96)

Forward Plan Ref: 2017/162
Contact: Hugh Potter, Team Leader — Area Operations Hub Tel: 07766 998704

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery (CMDE11).

The report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to introduce a
20mph speed limit in place of the existing 30mph limit at Swinbrook and a 30mph
speed limit at Widford. The proposals put forward by Swinbrook and Widford
Parish Council are in response to concerns over road safety and the wider adverse
impact of traffic on residents and visitors to the villages of Swinbrook and Widford.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to introduce a 20mph speed limit in place of the existing 30mph
limit at Swinbrook and a 30mph speed limit at Widford as advertised.



12.

Page 6

A4095 Burford Road, Witney - Proposed Shared Use
Footway/Cycle Track and Toucan Crossing (Pages 97 - 102)

Forward Plan Ref: 2018/030
Contact: Hugh Potter, Team Leader — Area Operations Hub Tel: 07766 998704

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery (CMDE12).

The report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to provide a
shared use footway/cycle-track and toucan crossing on the A4095 Burford Road in
the area between Springfield Park and Tower Hill, in Witney put forward as part of
a proposed residential development on the north side of the A4095 Burford Road.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to provide a shared use footway/cycle-track and toucan crossing
on the A4095 Burford Road in the area between Springfield Park and Tower
Hill, in Witney as advertised.




Agenda ltem 4

Division(s): Barton, Sandhills & Risinghurst

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 12 APRIL 2018

OXFORD: VARIOUS STREETS IN BARTON AND RISINGHURST
AREA - PROPOSED WAITING RESTRICTIONS

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Introduction

1. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to
introduce waiting restrictions on Burchester Avenue, Green Road, London
Road Service Road, The Roundway, Northway and Wick Close, within the
Barton and Risinghurst area of Oxford.

Background

2. The above proposals have been put forward by local county councillors to
address parking problems in this area. Plans showing the proposals are
provided at Annexes 1 to 5.

Consultation

3. Formal consultation on the proposal was carried out between 08 February
and 09 March 2018. A public notice was placed in the Oxford Times
newspaper and sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley Police,
the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, local Oxford City and County
Councillors. Street notices were also placed in the vicinity of the proposed
waiting restrictions and letters sent to approximately 90 adjacent properties.

4, Nine responses were received during the course of the consultation,
comprising of the following:

Proposal Support Object Elgrl;[]?r?(ra/nNto
Burchester Avenue 1 - 8
Green Road 2 2 5
London Road Service Road | 4 1 4
The Roundway 3 2 4
Northway 1 - 8
5. The responses are summarised at Annex 6. Copies of the full responses are

available for inspection by County Councillors.

Page 1



10.

11.

12.

13.

CMDE4

Response to objection and other comments

Thames Valley Police did not object or submit any other comments in relation
to the proposals.

County Councillor Glynis Phillips, the member for Barton, Sandhills &
Risinghurst supported all the proposals. County Councillor Roz Smith, the
member for Headington and Quarry expressed no comment in respect of the
proposals for Burchester Avenue, the London Road service road and
Northway and no objection to the proposals for Green Road and The
Roundway.

Six responses were received from members of the public. Two objections to
the proposals for Green Road and The Roundway and one in respect of the
proposal for the London Road service road. The grounds for the objections
included concerns that the measures would simply transfer parking problems
elsewhere and also that at The Roundway, the additional restrictions could
have a significant adverse impact on local businesses.

Specifically in relation to The Roundway, suggestions were made that by
widening the road, additional parking could be accommodated by marking
parking bays at right angles to the road and also that traffic problems could be
mitigated here by introducing a one-way system.

More general comments were made that a residents parking scheme would
significantly help address parking problems in the area.

In respect of The Roundway, the proposed measures are considered
necessary to address local difficulties associated with inconsiderate parking in
the area. One likely impact of the measures if approved will be to encourage
the use of the car park by customers of the McDonalds restaurant and it
should be stressed that parking for customers of the other businesses will still
be available in the adjacent layby with some places also available on the
north west side of the road.

The suggested widening of the road at The Roundway to allow parking at right
angles - thereby increasing the number of parking places available — is
considered to be outside the scope of this project, given that it appears not all
of the land required is highway and, even if this latter issue could be
addressed, the costs of carrying out the works would be significant. Similarly,
the suggestion for a one-way system is also considered outside the scope of
this project, would require extensive further consultation and could well prove
contentious due to it potentially leading to additional traffic in adjacent
residential roads.

In respect of the requests for the introduction of a residents parking scheme, a
joint project between Oxfordshire County Council and Oxford City Council to
extend such schemes to other parts of Oxford is currently being developed,
and would provide an appropriate opportunity to review these requests
further.

Page 2



14.

15.

16.

CMDE4

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives

The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic.

Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

Funding for the proposed waiting restrictions has been provided through
budgets available to Oxford City councillors.

RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve the
proposals to introduce waiting restrictions on Burchester Avenue,
Green Road, London Road Service Road, The Roundway, Northway and
Wick Close, within the Barton and Risinghurst area of Oxford as
advertised.

OWEN JENKINS
Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Background papers: Plan of proposed waiting restrictions

Consultation responses

Contact Officers: Hugh Potter 07766 998704

April 2018

Page 3



¥ obed

Ellington
Court

Notea

Waiting Restrictions

Proposed No Waiting ot any time.

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mupPing with the
permission of the Controller of Her Mojesty’s Stationery
Office Crown copyright © Unauthorized reproduction
infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings. ordshire County Council, LAG76805.

Do not scaole this drawing

Rev Dascription By | Dote |Chk'd|Auth

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Oxford Various Streets
Amendments to Waiting
& Loading Restrictions

2018
™ Location of Proposed
No Walting at Any Time
Controls
Burchester Avenue/North Way Junction
[Scale an By Iﬁm:lnd By [Approved By
1:500 SMA
Jpats 19.01.18 [pats Joate

F’”"" “™ Sketch 1 |T




CMDE4

Page 5



g obed

Notea

Waiting Restrictions

Proposed No Waiting at any time.

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mupPing with the
permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery
Office Crown copyright © Unauthorized reproduction
infringes Crown co&)rriqht and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings. Oxfordshire County Council, LAD76805.

Do not scale this drawing

Rev Dascription By | Date |cni'd|Auth

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Owen Jenkins
Oxfordshira County Council

County Hall
New Road
Oxford
X1 1ND

Project
Oxford Various Streets
Amendments to Waiting
& Loading Restrictions

2018

e Location of Proposed

No Waiting at Any Time
Controls — Green Road

s Brown By [Checked By Approved By
1:500 SMA
[pots 19.01.18 [pate Date
Dro

"N Sketch 5 |T




CMDE4

Page 7



g obed

Waiting Restrictions

RIDGEWAY ROAD

Proposed No Waiting at any time.

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mupPing with the
permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery
Office Crown copyright © Unauthorized reproduction
infringes Crown co&)rriqht and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings. Oxfordshire County Council, LAD76805.

Do not scale this drawing

By | Dote |Chi'd|Auth

Rev Description

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

en Jenkins
Oxfordshirs County Council
Communi ities
County Hall
New Road

Oxford
0X11ND

Project

Oxford Various Streets
Amendments to Waiting
& Loading Restrictions

2018

e Location of Proposed
No Waiting at Any Time
Controls

Ridgeway Road/London Road Junction

7] [Drown By IChecked By Approved By

1:500 SMA
[pots 19.01.18 [pate Date

Drawing Number S kefc h 4 |T




CMDE4

Page 9



0T o0ed

ANNEX 4

\

LONDON ROAD

Waiting Restrictions

Proposed No Waiting at any time.

Existing No Waiting at any time, ==

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mupPing with the
permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery
Office Crown copyright © Unauthorized reproduction
infringes Crown co&)rriqht and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings. Oxfordshire County Council, LAD76805.

Do not scale this drawing

Rev Dascription By | Date |cni'd|Auth

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Owen Jenkins
Oxfordshira County Council

County Hall
e Road

Oxford

X1 1ND

Project
Oxford Various Streets
Amendments to Waiting
& Loading Restrictions

2018

e Location of Proposed

No Waiting at Any Time
Controls
The Roundway

7] [Drown By IChecked By Approved By
1:500 SMA

[pots 19.01.18 [pate Date

Drawing Number S k efc h 3 |T




TT obed

Waiting Restrictions

Proposed No Waiting at any time.

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mupPing with the
permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery
Office Crown copyright © Unauthorized reproduction
infringes Crown co&)rriqht and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings. Oxfordshire County Council, LAD76805.

Do not scale this drawing

Rev Dascription By | Date |cni'd|Auth

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Owen Jenkins
Oxfordshira County Council

Project
Oxford Various Streets
Amendments to Waiting
& Loading Restrictions

2018

e Location of Proposed

No Waiting at Any Time
Controls
Wick Close/North Way Junction
. o Drown By Checksd By (Approved By
(7

\ 1:500 [ SMA
[pots 19.01.18 [pate Date
— = ’ Sketch 2 |T




2T obed

CMDE4

ANNEX 6

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

(1) Traffic Management
Officer, (Thames Valley
Police)

No objection — no additional comments.

(2) CliIr Glynis Phillips
Councillor, (Barton,
Sandhills & Risinghurst
Division)

Burchester Avenue — Support — It is important that these junctions are kept clear so that emergency vehicles can
access residents quickly. Visibility is also a key issue in this area.

Green Road — Support — Important that visibility is improved in this area.

London Road Service Road — Support — Important to keep this junction clear as visibility exiting from Ridgeway Road
is often impaired with vans and cars. Residents have advised of the danger in exiting this junction.

The Roundway — Support — The road outside McDonalds is often full of cars parked outside because people are
rushing in to buy food or parking to eat their food in their cars. McDonalds have increased the number of parking
spaces to encourage customers to park off the road. Its also a dangerous bend and needs to kept clear of parked
vehicles.The area outside the shops needs to have unrestricted parking so as not to deter customers. There is a
balance to be struck between keeping the bends clear of traffic while not discouraging customers into the area.
Northway — Support — Important to keep this area clear of cars so that visibility on the junction is not impaired.

(3) ClIr Roz Smith
Councillor, (Headington &
Quarry Division)

Burchester Avenue — no comment

Green Road — Neither — From outside number 70 towards Beaumont Road. | would support the introduction of double
yellow lines on the stretch of Green Road. The road is narrow at this point and bends, restricting parking would allow
vehicles to pass and give better clearance/view for resident’s driveways. This stretch of road sees a high volume of
traffic movement as a rat run to avoid the Green Road roundabout and has a busy garage business too.

London Road Service Road — no comment

The Roundway — Neither — The consultation drawings show quite a long length of double yellow lines. There is a
popular McDonalds which does attract a high volume of cars and observations show that some drivers park
inconsiderately although there is more off-road parking than in previous years.

Northway — no comment

(4) Local Resident,
(unknown)

Burchester Avenue — Neither — no comment

Green Road — Neither — no comment

London Road Service Road — Support — 100% support the proposal. Currently the traffic is terrible and these changes
are much required.

The Roundway — Support — as above




¢T obed

CMDE4

Northway — Neither — no comment

(5) Local Resident,
(Green Road,
Headington)

Burchester Avenue — Neither — no comment

Green Road — Neither — no comment

London Road Service Road — Support — no comment

The Roundway — Object — | live on Green Road. The proposals will simply push vehicle parking towards and past my
house and down Forest Road. This area is already used daily by commuters and others which frequently prevents me
parking outside my own home and occasionally blocks my driveway preventing my access or egress. It will cause
similar problems for other residents in Green Road and Forest Road.l am also extremely concerned that the
businesses on The Roundway will suffer significantly and may close. Any potential new businesses will be put off by
the lack of parking. Suggests that the current parking bay is extended width-wise so that vehicles could park at right
angles to the pavement. The number of vehicles able to park outside the shops would therefore be roughly doubled.
While the current arrangement can sometimes be a little chaotic it is not dangerous. Your proposals will make the
general situation here much, much worse.

Northway — Neither — no comment

(6) Local Resident,
(Ridgeway Road,
Headington)

Burchester Avenue — Neither — no comment

Green Road — Support — no comment

London Road Service Road — Support — | strongly support this proposal as at present people are parking dangerously
on this particular road. In addition, people park on the pavement and in areas that are already currently restricted.
Therefore, | would advocate stronger enforcement of parking regulations, as well as proposed new parking restrictions.
The Roundway — Support — no comment

Northway — Neither — no comment

(7) Local Resident,
(Green Road,
Headington)

Burchester Avenue — Neither — no comment

Green Road — Object — the parking restriction will be right by my house. | feel that all you are doing is pushing the
parking problems on to other areas. The houses around the corner will have nowhere to park so will park outside my
house and the neighbouring business. On a Monday - Friday Green Road is full of commuters cars who are forced to
park on Green road and surrounding streets due to local parking restrictions. This means we have very little parking in
this area and the double yellow lines will make it far worse. | have two young daughters who drive and | am concerned
that there will be no parking for them at night forcing them to park their cars far away from our house in areas that are
not very well lit at night, making me worried for their safety.

London Road Service Road — Object — | feel this will affect the businesses on The Roundway as there will be no
parking for customers. | think we should support local business making it easier for people to access them.

The Roundway — Object — | feel that parking restrictions like this will ruin local business which are having a hard
enough time to survive.




T abed

CMDE4

Northway — Neither — no comment

(8) Local Resident,
(Green Road,
Headington)

Burchester Avenue — Neither — no comment

Green Road — Object — | feel these restrictions are unnecessary as the corner has wooden bollards on the corner
mean you can't park on the corner anyway. Also we get a lot of commuters parking in this area and | feel the
restrictions are just forcing the issue on other places. | run the business quarry motoring centre and these restrictions
will have an effect on my business making it impossible for my customers to park. The corner you are proposing the
lines on is not dangerous and we do not have accidents there. By removing more parking | feel people will block the
other corners making them dangerous.

London Road Service Road — Neither — no comment

The Roundway — Neither — no comment

Northway — Neither — no comment

(9) Local Resident,
(unknown)

Burchester Avenue — no comment

Green Road — no comment

London Road Service Road — no comment

The Roundway — Neither — With regard to The Roundway prohibition except for outside the shops, as a shop tennant |
do feel the road outside the shops would benefit from being a one way system, parking is a main issue, especially from
cars not even using the shops which does cause the road to be at a grid lock most of the time, with parking restrictions
each side of the Roundway surely this will get worse, at least with one way traffic, cars, delivery vans etc will be able to
get through safely, also i feel the parking outside the shops should be for shop use only, possibly with a minimum
waiting time.

Northway — no comment




Agenda ltem 5

Division(s): Wolvercote & Summertown

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 12 APRIL 2018

OXFORD: MILL ROAD AND GODSTOW ROAD AT WOLVERCOTE -
PROPOSED WAITING RESTRICTIONS

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Introduction

1. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to
introduce waiting restrictions on Mill Road and Godstow Road at Wolvercote,
Oxford.

Background

2. The above proposal has been put forward as part of a proposed residential
development at Mill Road. A plan showing the proposal is provided at Annex
1.

Consultation

3. Formal consultation on the proposal was carried out between 22 February
and 23 March 2018. A public notice was placed in the Oxford Times
newspaper and sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley Police,
Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Oxford City Council, local County
Councillor as well as the local City Councillors. Street notices were also
placed in the vicinity of the proposed waiting restrictions and letters sent to
approximately 50 adjacent premises.

4, Four responses were received during the consultation. One objection, one
expression of support and two responses expressing no objection but one Of
those two responses included a query on whether the plan used for the
consultation reflected a subsequent amendment to the proposed new road
layout. These responses are summarised at Annex 2. Copies of the full
responses are available for inspection by County Councillors.

Response to objection and other comments

5. Thames Valley Police response expressed no objection to the proposal.

6. The expression of support was from a resident of Mill Road. Their response
also noted that most of the road was not highway and requested that an
advisory sign be provided at the entry to the length that is private road to deter
non-residents from parking here. This request will be passed on to the
developer for their consideration while noting that such a sign could be

Page 15



10.

11.

CMDES5

provided by the owners of the private road without requiring approval of the
County Council should this prove to be an issue following the construction of
the development.

The objection was also from a resident of Mill Road who was concerned that
the proposed prohibition of waiting on the north side of Mill Road would
encourage parking on the south side adjacent to the houses here and so
result in a nuisance to residents. While this concern is noted, the proposed
extent of the prohibition extends only approximately 15 metres west of the
new junction and, therefore, would leave a significant amount of kerb space
available for parking on the north side of the road.

The Wolvercote Neighbourhood Forum expressed no objection to the
proposal but queried if the plan used for the consultation (as shown at Annex
1) reflected the latest approved layout of the new junction. | can confirm that
the plan is correct in respect of the proposed waiting restrictions.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives
The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic.
Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

Funding for the proposed waiting restrictions has been provided from the
developers of land off Mill Road.

RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to introduce waiting restrictions on Mill Road and Godstow
Road at Wolvercote, Oxford as advertised.

OWEN JENKINS
Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Background papers: Plan of proposed waiting restrictions

Consultation responses

Contact Officers: Hugh Potter 07766 998704

April 2018

Page 16



CMDES5

Page 17



*
2

gT obed

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital data with the
permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office
Crown copyright (AL814229)

Wolvercote Papermill, Oxford
New Road Layout

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PLAN
SHEET 1 OF 1

Scale | 1:500

Date November 2017




6T obed

CMDES5

ANNEX 2

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

(1) Traffic Management
Officer, (Thames Valley
Police)

Neither - this area falls within an area of Civil Parking Enforcement, therefore these restrictions place no burden upon
Thames Valley Police.

() Local Resident, (Mill
Road, Wolvercote)

Object - | do not have any objection in principle to the proposal to impose parking restrictions on these streets, but |
have two concerns about the proposals as they affect Mill Road.

(a) The proposal is to allow free parking on the south side of Mill Road but not the north. It ought to be the other way
round ... there are houses (including mine) on the south side, with frontages on the road, and it is horrible to have cars
right in front of the living room window. There are no houses on the south side, just a fence and derelict offices.

(b) There should be sufficient 'residents only' spaces: even with unrestricted parking it is often hard for residents to find
anywhere to park.

() Local Resident, (Mill
Road, Wolvercote)

Support - we are delighted with your proposals. We have one other suggestion/request. Mill Road from Jacobs Inn
boundary is a private unapproved road. | can envisage a lot of parking disputes when outsiders try to park down Mill
Road, especially after your double yellow lines further restrict parking. As | understand the law the only people who
have a right to park are those whose houses have frontage on the private road. Would the Council be able to erect a
prominent sign saying 'PRIVATE ROAD, RESIDENTS ONLY PARKING ' or words to that effect.

() Wolvercote
Neighbourhood Forum

Neither - we would like to point out to you that the road layout shown on your proposed drawing dated November 2017
does not accord with the modified layout which the developer of the adjacent land recently presented to our
neighbourhood at a public exhibition. We suggest that the modified layout could affect your proposals and we suggest
that you seek further details from the developer before proceeding with this proposal.

The planning consent reference for the proposed development is: 13/01861/OUT and relates to Wolvercote Paper Mill
Site.




CMDES5

Page 20



Agenda ltem 6

Division(s): Jericho & Osney

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 12 APRIL 2018

OXFORD: ABBEY ROAD AND CRIPLEY PLACE - PROPOSED
AMENDMENT TO WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND RESIDENTS
PARKING SPACES

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery
Introduction
1. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation on a

proposal to amend waiting restrictions and residents parking spaces on Abbey
Road and Cripley Place, Oxford.

Background

2. The above proposal has been put forward as part of a proposed residential
development at Abbey Road. A plan showing the proposal is provided at
Annex 1.

Consultation

3. Formal consultation on the proposal was carried out between 25 January and
16 February 2018. A public notice was placed in the Oxford Times newspaper
and sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley Police, Oxford City
Council and the local County Councillor. Street notices were also placed in
the vicinity of the proposed waiting restrictions and letters sent to
approximately 20 adjacent properties.

4. Eight responses were received. 5 objections (60%) to the Abbey Road
proposals and 4 objections (50%) for Cripley Place. These responses are
summarised at Annex. Copies of the full responses are available for
inspection by County Councillors.

Response to objection and other comments

5. Thames Valley Police did not object to the proposals as advertised.

6. The objections and other responses were all from residents of the area
primarily citing concerns that insufficient parking was provided for residents
and that the current two-hour shared bays in Cripley Place and the wider area
were often abused by non-residents’ vehicles over-staying this limit. That
caused problems due to drivers searching for available spaces, noting that the
area was close to the city centre and was, therefore, particularly prone to such
behaviour.

Page 21



CMDEG6

7. The proposals for Abbey Road are for permit holder parking only and for
Cripley Place, the replacement of a currently unrestricted bay with a bay
available for residents or two-hour waiting by non-residents. The proposals,
therefore, would appear to be helping address the concerns raised by
residents over the availability of residents parking places; although it is
accepted that there may well be a case for a wider review of parking provision
in the area. That would appear to be a wider matter than the changes being
proposed in connection with the residential development on Abbey Road
which is funding the proposals.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives
7. The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic.
Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

8. Funding for the proposed waiting restrictions and amendment to residents
parking spaces has been provided from the developers of land at Abbey Road

RECOMMENDATION
9. The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve

proposals to amend waiting restrictions and residents parking spaces
on Abbey Road and Cripley Place, Oxford as advertised.

OWEN JENKINS
Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Background papers: Plan of proposed waiting restrictions
Consultation responses

Contact Officers: Hugh Potter 07766 998704

April 2018

Page 22



Crown Copyright and database rights 2014
100023343

Oxfordshire County Council
Licence Mo. 100023343

HIooY

AN Nvnana

Shared use bays & Double YellowiLines
become Permit Holders Qnly parking

ez abed

o Key to Restriction Types Displayed
No waiting at any time

/,r——f'—‘f— Parking, permit holders or
e 2 hours. No return within 2
e / hours

Parking for residents (by
permit) and residents’
visitors only

SCALE NTS
OXFORDSHIRE Proposed parking changes
COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE 15/12/2017

Abbey Road & Cripley Place DRAWING No.
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk West Oxford

DRAWN BY




vz abed

CMDEG6

ANNEX 2

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

Traffic Management
Officer, (Thames Valley
Police)

No objection.

Local Resident, (Abbey
Road, Botley)

Abbey Road — Object — With the Cala homes development it is essential that existing and new residents have
adequate parking in this area. | am pleased to see that the uncontrolled parking bay is to go, which is permanently
abused by long stay parking. the biggest bugbear in this area is coaches overstaying their welcome, often on double
yellow lines for drop offs staying at the yha or one hour plus meal drops at 'the one' pub/restaurant, often with the
engines running to keep the 'aircon' running. Please have a dedicated drop off site for the yha, and ban coaches
parking at length. Residents parking permits should include Cripley road in the same way as Abbey road.

Cripley Place — Support — My comments above cover most of this issue. Cripley place must not be turned into a 'rat
run'. nor an area for loitering taxis at all hours. Instigate some forward planning now with the future railway site
redevelopment taken into consideration that will then be established in good time without more amendments and
expense. aka Frideswide square!

Local Resident,
(unknown)

Abbey Road — Neither — | believe there are too few shared bays in Abbey Road as the permit only bays are often only
partially used during the day. | would like to see the same number of shared spaces on the east side of Abbey Road as
on the west side.

Cripley Place — Neither — There are two 1-hour spaces adjacent to ‘Go Eat’ in Cripley Road. | would like to see these
changed to two hour spaces as a quid-pro-quo for removing the two unrestricted spaces in Cripley Place.

Local Resident, (Cripley
Road, Botley)

Abbey Road — Neither — see below

Cripley Place - Neither- Preference is to remove the provision for two hour waiting — this does not benefit residents
and leads to non-residents circling the area in the hope of finding a space to then travel to the nearby city centre; in
addition to the inconvenience and noise, such users also leave litter etc. in the areas.

Local Resident, (Abbey
Road area)

Abbey Road — Object — see below

Cripley Place - Object - Why, is there no attempt to use this review to sort out the parking issues on Cripley road?!
If the Council could make all of Cripley Road double yellow/residents’ parking - as it clearly should be (it being a
residential street not a short stay car park) then coaches would not be drawn into the street.




Gz abed

CMDEG6

Local Resident, (Abbey
Road area)

Abbey Road — Object — see below

Cripley Place - Object - Whatever the good intentions of the last review and subsequent changes (I was told
something about easing strain on residents parking in Mill St), it clearly hasn’t worked.

The residents side is usually not full to capacity and the 2hr bays are almost always filled by either shoppers or

coaches! So, as James and | have pointed out repeatedly, it's not only failed it's made things far worse for local
residents

Local Resident, (Abbey
Road area)

Abbey Road — Object — see below

Cripley Place - Object - Just to add - the 2 hour parking spaces are very rarely used by residents. | always see people
returning with shopping bags (why bother paying for parking in the city centre when you can park for free!)

At the weekend in particular you see so many cars driving around waiting for a parking space to become free.

The temporary car park that was set up in Oxpens should be turned back into a coach park before the summer (at
least until a better solution for tourist coaches is found).The spaces should be residents only.

Local Resident, (Abbey
Road area)

Abbey Road — Object — see below
Cripley Place - Object - My view is close down these bays and make them all residential, preserving our
neighbourhood and the environment.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

Division(s): North Hinksey

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 12 APRIL 2018

NORTH HINKSEY: B4044 WEST WAY — PROPOSED PUFFIN
CROSSING

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Introduction

1. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to
introduce a new puffin crossing on the B4044 West Way to replace an existing
staggered pelican crossing by the EIms Parade shopping centre.

Background

2. The above proposal has been put forward as part of a proposed
redevelopment of EIms Parade shopping centre; a plan showing the proposal
is provided at Annex 1.

Consultation

3. Formal consultation on the proposal was carried out between 18 January and
16 February 2018. A public notice was placed in the Oxford Times newspaper
and sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley Police, the Fire &
Rescue Service, Ambulance service, the Vale of White Horse District Council,
Oxford City Council, North Hinksey Parish Council and the local County
Councillor. Street notices were also placed in the vicinity of the proposed
puffin crossing and letters sent to approximately 40 adjacent properties.

4, Twenty-three responses were received during the course of the consultation.
Ten objections (43%), seven in support (30%) and six neither objecting or
supporting (26%). These responses are summarised at Annex 2. Copies of
the full responses are available for inspection by County Councillors.

Response to objections and other comments

5. Thames Valley Police have not objected to the proposals.

6. County Councillor Judy Roberts supported the proposal with the proviso that
the crossing operates as a ‘straight through' crossing (as opposed to two
separate crossings for the east and westbound traffic lanes), which is
confirmed will be the case.

7. Councillor Roberts also expressed concerns over the comparatively narrow
width of the footway on the north side of the road, especially taking account of

Page 27



10.

11.

12.

13.

CMDE7

the number of pedestrians at school journey times and the regular use of the
footway by those using mobility scooters and buggies etc., noting also that at
the location of the crossing planting in the adjacent gardens has been allowed
to grow over the footway further narrowing its effective width. It is accepted
that the footway between the Poplar Road and Elms Road junction is quite
narrow (typically around 2.4 metres width) but it is not considered viable to
widen this while also retaining the right turn lane provision to Poplar Road and
the bus layby on the south side of the road. The overgrowth of vegetation
from the adjacent gardens will, however, be investigated and the property
owners requested to address this both to provide more space for pedestrians
and to remove any risk of the signal heads being obscured.

A further concern raised by Councillor Roberts related to the speed of traffic,
with a request being made for an advisory 20mph speed limit to apply at
school journey times. Provision of such signing will be investigated subject to
funding being identified.

North Hinksey Parish Council expressed neither support or objection to the
proposal but raised similar concerns over the narrow width of the footway on
the north side of the road and the overhanging vegetation and also queried
the retention of the central island given that a ‘straight through’ crossing is to
be provided, with the space gained being used to widen the footway on the
north side. However, for the reasons given above it is not considered viable to
do that.

Botley Primary School similarly expressed neither support or objection to the
proposal with the proviso that the proposed provision is a ‘straight through’
crossing but also noted the broader concerns about the narrow width of the
footway on the north side of the road.

The Vale of the White Horse District Council have not objected to the
proposal.

Ten members of the public expressed objections to the proposal. The majority
of those cited concerns about the narrow width of the footway on the north
side of the road with additional concerns and observations including the
potential additional traffic delays with a ‘straight through’ crossing due to the
longer time traffic would be held on red to allow pedestrians to cross both the
east and west bound traffic lanes, the proximity of the bus layby on the south
side of the road, a concern that a toucan crossing should be provided to also
cater for cyclists, traffic speeds in the vicinity and that the existing staggered
layout was preferable and better catered for existing pedestrian crossing
demands.

Six members of the public expressed support for the proposals with a further
two expressing neither support or objection. However, most of those
responding cited concerns about the width of the footway on the north side of
the road, with concerns over the speed of traffic also being raised with some
requesting that a 20mph speed limit be introduced.

Page 28



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

CMDE7

In response to the additional matters being raised by members of the public,
the impact of the crossing on traffic delays has been assessed, noting that
crossings of this type are provided on appreciably busier roads with a similar
width and that the design takes into account the proximity of the layby on the
south side of the road. A toucan crossing is not considered appropriate at this
location as such crossings are only provided where there is linking off
carriageway cycle provision. That is not the case here.

The requests for a formal 20mph speed limit are noted and will be
investigated as part of a wider project to improve this road.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives
The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic.
Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

Funding for the proposed waiting restrictions has been provided from the
developers of the Elms Parade shopping centre.

RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve the
proposal to introduce a new puffin crossing on the B4044 West Way to
replace an existing staggered pelican crossing by the Elms Parade
shopping centre as advertised.

OWEN JENKINS
Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Background papers: Plan of proposed waiting restrictions

Consultation responses

Contact Officers: Hugh Potter 07766 998704

April 2018

Page 29



0€ abed

Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence no. 100019980

bl B

; ™

%y %
N wl_j d = S

b

m= ~ . o, . . "
PTL® 3 T T S, M |j-_—l-———| Ig"’v
= amm _ = S e—
|$\/&\/\3¢/\)l

e —— p—

Ty o y—

! Fch s 0 T

—— N
_ - - - ‘E* _I‘{-:‘f':_’-‘-:{ =101 > L — = : ‘-.I-:I.-_ = ) - H"\s’“ % \\:‘-'
[+ _—_ o muEREEEREE Q,PTL 2 © o L 2, = -
.y mEa “ .90 Ry AL, 52 b
q 11 9 o - - -
s T &) AL = —— o 5 oo | 4
o N T rd ' Lady,
i . it / i i
= : ““"'j f 3 'Y A"
mﬁ °$ > *ﬁ -
.
] ]
S .
_ T . Ny 0
e < s, BANNE CHONEL, % I ,\E‘P' in - - h-,v —JH ] i& g
:-‘ ‘‘‘‘‘ e e Y
ELMS PARADE : P =l
Client ) . S
BOTLEY DEVELOPMENT Scale Size Drawn Designed ‘;
COMPANY 1:250 A4 | AS DT £
[
Project Drawing Stat S
TRANSPORT % WEST wAY, BOTLEY, rawing ot Date S
OXFORD FOR INFORMATION 07.12.17 5
CONSULTANTS _ i i
www.orgin-consultants.com Drawing title PROPOSED IMPROVEMENT Drawing No. Rev g
TO SIGNALLED SK153 - 1115
PEDESTRIAN CROSSING Rev Date Description Dm_ Chk App |5




T¢ obed

CMDE7

ANNEX 2

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

(1) Traffic Management
Officer, (Thames Valley
Police)

No objection — no additional comments

(9) ClIr Judy Roberts,
local member

Support - Overall this is a much needed replacement to the current sheep pen design but it must operate with both
sides of the road stopped simultaneously so that it would be safe for children to run straight across as some will do.
The pavement on the north side of West Way is too narrow. This pavement has to accommodate wheelchairs and
mobility scooters; at peak times children spill into the road whilst waiting already. It would be beneficial if there was
also a flashing school children speed restriction of 20 mph at the start and end of the school day. There is a plant
placed in front of the PTL in the easterly direction, | think this is unwise as OCC highways maintenance budget is very
small and it would be unsafe if the signal became obscured by plant growth in the future. As the County Councillor for
this area | hope these concerns will be addressed.

(2) North Hinksey Parish
Council

Neither - it is not possible for NHPC at this point in time to provide a detailed final response to the proposals, due to (a)
the lack of clarification as to whether these proposals would be temporary or of a permanent nature, and (b) the lack of
a legend for the proposed plans. However, Parish Councillors do wish to ensure that the following concerns are noted:
e the height and overhanging from nearby hedges and the narrowness of the pavement at the crossing on the
north side of West Way combining to cause problems for groups of people (particularly parents with
schoolchildren and toddlers) gathered waiting to cross West Way, and also for other pedestrians wishing to
pass them on the pavement,
e (ueries as to whether the central reservation is to remain in place in the long term as indicated on these plans,
as there appeared to be no benefit gained from retaining it given that this is intended as a single straight over
crossing, whereas removing it could give more scope for widening the pavement.

(3) Vale of White Horse
District Council

No objection — no additional comments

(4) Botley School

Neither - as the biggest user of the crossing, we have to ensure it is the best and safest option for all pedestrians.
1. We were pleased to see the “dog leg” central reservation removed from the plans as this was very hazardous at
peak times, not adequate to safely contain the numbers crossing in one go at peak times. However, we do




2 abed

CMDE7

need to be reassured that the new crossing will allow all pedestrians time to cross the entire carriageway
without needing to stop half way.

2. We have had concerns about the tremendous speed the proximity of buses and taxi’s using the bus lane to
pedestrians, with huge potential for them being clipped by as vehicles speed passed impatiently, especially with
the increase of queueing traffic on West Way. The pavement on the EIms Road side of the proposed crossing are
very narrow, completely inadequate to safely accommodate the 450 children, their parents, with buggies, bikes
and scooters, all arriving and leaving at the same time every day. We have already had one pupil knocked
down at the current crossing, we do not want another.

Myself and the Governors of Botley School need reassurance that the safety and wellbeing of pupils, their parents and
staff will be at the centre of any decision-making process.

(5) Local Resident,
(unknown)

Support - | remember using this crossing when | used to go to Primary School...! But | can see it would improve and
speed crossing the road for the children and parents, plus make it safer because the green man will appear on the
same side of road as you so will help children crossing the road, which can only be a good thing.

(6) Local Resident,
(Arthray Road, Botley)

Support - | can understand why the crossing is being straightened. Hopefully it will mean that more people will actually
use the crossing, as many people don't use the staggered part of the crossing and cross at either end of the current
central section instead, which is dangerous especially when children are being taken this way.However - with a straight
crossing it is essential that the traffic will stop in both directions at the same time and pedestrians given enough time to
cross the full width of the road. Another key point, is that this is the perfect opportunity to widen the pavement on the
side nearest Poplar Road; the pavement here is too narrow and already with the existing crossing, particularly at
school pick up time, children are forced to stand right at the edge of the pavement with buses whizzing by, and people
wanting not walk along the pavement can't easily get past the people waiting to cross. This is even more of a problem
when people with mobility scooters, pushchairs and prams are added to the mix.

(7) Local Resident,
(unknown)

Support — no comment

(8) Local Resident,
(unknown)

Support - | agree with Clir Hallett's two provisos; 1) that the pavement is too narrow for safety on the north side and 2)
that a speed limit of 20mph should be enforced here to reduce the chances of serious collision.

(10) Local Resident,
(unknown)

Object - The footpath on north side needs to be widened first, then a staggered crossing retained. It was made
staggered for a reason, to stop children running across both lanes thinking the 2nd lane had stopped when in fact their
lights were still on green. I think this was done following an accident in the 70's. If you stop both lanes together it will
have to be for a longer period and this will cause unnecessary congestion.




cc abed

CMDE7

(11) Local Resident,
(Eynsham Road, Botley)

Object - This is a very busy junction which needs to be carefully crafted. Currently the proposal doesn't allow room for
the many school age children to wait before crossing the road. | propose the road is narrowed to slow traffic down -
buses and cars all speed up when leaving Oxford which has caused many very serious crashes between vulnerable
road users and motor vehicles.

(12) Local Resident,
(Sycamore Road, Botley)

Object - As the local District Councillor and a parent of children at Botley school, | am fully supportive of the crossing
being changed to one that goes straight across, without having to wait inside a 'pen' in the centre of the road. This will
mean children only having to wait next to the traffic once, rather than twice when crossing, and increase visibility
around the crossing. However | object to the design for this crossing because the pavement on the north side of West
Way is too narrow, especially at busy times, like after school, there are dozens of children, students getting off the bus
having returned from Bartholomew School and other people all waiting to cross, and also giving consideration to those
using wheelchairs and mobility scooters etc.. They simply cannot fit on the pavement when the new crossing will be
situated. The home owner just behind the crossing has a hedge which, when is due for a trim, restricts the space event
further.It seems inefficient and short-sighted not to widen the pavement here whilst putting the new crossing in. The
space between the two lanes of traffic could be reduced leaving room to widen the pavement. Or the road lay out could
be adjusted in another way to ensure the pavement is wider at this point next to the crossing.

The Liberal Democrat group on the Vale DC support my position outlined above and we would all like to see the
pavement widened. | am happy to discuss over the phone or meet someone at the site to explain further my concerns
and possible solutions.

(13) Local Resident,
(Eynsham Road, Botley)

Object - The relocation of the pedestrian crossing is to allow the opening of an access to Church Way from West Way.
This new access is limited to delivery vehicles to the centre making left-in turns only. | wish to make the following
comments.Location - The location seems to be less suitable than the current location. It is close to the bus stop layby,
and where the pavement narrows. This will reduce the available space for people waiting to cross. At the start and end
of the school day, there are many parents, with small children, push chairs etc. | worry that there will be congestion and
conflict between people at the bus stop and those waiting to cross. | worry that people may be too close to the edge of
the pavement at the end of the lay by where the buses turn in.Straight across - The lights will be required to stop the
traffic both ways, for the duration required for crossing the full width of the road, (rather than two phases to the central
refuge as currently). This will create longer duration stops for the traffic, which may cause an issue at busy times.
Traffic frequently backs up to the lights by Macdonald's.

Trees - Trees are proposed on the pavement, either side of the crossing, to replace those trees within the development
site which have TPOs. This will reduce the useable width of the pavement, and may in the long term create problems




7€ obed

CMDE7

with roots lifting the paving surface. They will also impede on the line of sight between the on-coming traffic and people
on the pavement and the bus stop.

(14) Local Resident,
(Crabtree Road, Botley)

Support - | think it would be a sensible idea to consider the width of the pavement on the Botley school/seacourt pub
side of the road as it becomes very congested with school children during drop off & pick up. It is quite narrow with
hedges encroaching.

(15) Local Resident,
(unknown)

Object - | live next to this crossing and see no reason to change it. There have been accidents in the past but only
because drivers have failed to stop at the lights or pedestrians haven't looked before crossing.

The other Puffin crossings I've used are difficult as they don't give enough time to get across and also the signal to
Cross isn't easy to see. Lots of children and parents cross here during the school day and the staggered crossing
means they are less likely to race out onto the road.

(16) Local Resident,
(unknown)

Support - Please consider widening the pavement on the EIms Road side of the crossing. The pavement is currently
too narrow for the volume of people (as well as pushchairs, mobility scooters and other wheeled items) that use it at
school drop off and pick up times. | always ensure my son walks inside me, next to the hedge as | am terrified of the
buses that whizz past very close to the pavement edge.

(17) Local Resident,
(Stanley Close, Botley)

Object - The crossing design is not sufficient to safe guard children, parents and other pedestrians on the EIms Road
side of West Way. This side should be made wider and OCC must enforce the home owners on this side to completely
remove hedges which are faintly outlined on the plans. The overhang removes at least 70cm of pavement from the
waiting area where other pedestrians need to go past. The traffic light posts themselves also take up space causing
pedestrians to pass them on the road side when it is busy; again endangering all road and pavement users at these
busy time. At 3:15-4:00 when it is very busy on the road and the crossing (pavement) buses fly past too fast and
everyday narrowly missing people standing waiting for the lights to change. Buses should be forced to join the main
traffic flow at this point and the pavement/waiting zone be widened.

(18) Local Resident,
(Cumnor Rise Road,
Oxford)

Object - the crossing is too close to the bus lay-by on the south side of West Way and there would be insufficient
pavement space on either side of West Way to accommodate pedestrians waiting to cross. The proposed position
would increase the danger to westbound cyclists. The lack of pavement space would be a major problem during school
run times and rush hours more widely. On the south side, the proximity of the lay-by restricts space for those queuing
to cross and other pedestrians would have to step into the roadway to get past. In addition, the submitted plan omits to
show the large tree pits on either side of the crossing proposed in the developer's landscape scheme (P18/vV0120/DIS,
drwg 1085.01.004 Rev P1); these further restrict space. Also, long gaps between the Puffin crossing being on green,
as might be expected on this strategic route, would increase the build-up of waiting pedestrians.

(19) Local Resident,
(Haines Court, Marcham)

Neither - Whilst | agree to getting rid of the metal barriers, at least that stopped children from just rushing across the
road. My main concern is the narrow pavement on the school side of the road. At school times there are several
children (some with bikes and scooters) and adults (some with pushchairs and prams) crossing at the same time, as




G¢e abed

CMDE7

well as locals with mobility scooters. Those people not crossing have difficulty walking passed those waiting to cross
especially where there are hedges from gardens overhanging the pavement. Although | know what a Puffin crossing is,
does it give a loud sound when it is okay to cross the road? That is something lacking at the moment as partially
sighted people don't know when it is safe to cross. | take and fetch my grandchild (soon to be two) to Botley Primary
School and have found it very unsafe as it is at the moment in that the lights change all too quickly only allowing about
5 people to cross over before the lights change. Slow elderly people cannot be expected to rush across. | trust all these
problems can be overcome if the crossing should change to a Puffin crossing and be moved nearer to Poplar Road.

(20) Local Resident,
(Pinnocks Way)

Object - The plans will resolve nothing on the EIms Road side of the crossing. The crossing design is not sufficient to
safe guard children, parents and other pedestrians on the EIms Road side of West Way. This side should be made
wider and OCC must enforce the home owners to completely remove hedges which are faintly outlined on the plans.
The overhang removes at least 70cm of pavement from the waiting area where other pedestrians need to go past. The
traffic light posts themselves (PTL on the plan) also take up space causing pedestrians to pass them on the road side
when it is busy; again endangering all road and pavement users at these busy times. Buses should be forced to join
the main traffic flow at this point and the pavement/waiting zone be widened.

(21) Local Resident,
(Sycamore Road, Oxford)

Neither - | have two main worries, First, this is the main crossing for pupils to get to school and back home again. At
the rush hour, the pavement on the north side of West Way isn't wide enough to hold everyone safely. Crowds of
people waiting to cross West Way mean others who are trying to pass by can sometimes be forced off the pavement
into the street. There is no slack here; parents waiting on the pavement have been hit by bus mirrors. It's that close to
traffic. Can the pavement be made wider, safer and more capacious here? Second, a 20mph limit would be helpful-
HGVs, service vehicles, cars, cycles, pedestrians, parents pushing push chairs, wheelchair users and blind people are
all sharing the road and pavement here. Plus this crosswalk is just as west bound buses reach the bus stop and pull in.

(22) Local Resident,
(Montagu Road, Oxford)

Object - Whilst a puffin crossing may be an improvement from the existing pelican crossing; | would’ve expected a
justification as to why a toucan crossing is not appropriate here to accompany the plans.This is an important crossing
to school, between primarily shopping areas and residential areas of the Botley settlement. As such you should be
planning for routes for all sustainable transport modes first. It is reasonable to expect large numbers of children to
wish to cross the road here on bikes for example.

(23) Local Resident,
(Hurst Rise, Botley)

Object - The majority of users of the crossing approach from the south side (EIms Rise), crossing the road to reach the
GP surgery and primary school in EIms Road. For them the crossing is in the right place. But there is also a steady
flow of pedestrians from the north side (Poplar, Hazel and Seacourt Roads), crossing the road to reach the shops.
These include the residents of the older people’s bungalows at the end of Seacourt Road, many of whom are slow
walkers or in motorised wheel chairs. The traffic lights at the junction with Westminster Way mean that traffic coming
from the City generally approaches the crossing at lowish speed whereas on the other side of the road traffic has had a
steady run from Cumnor Hill and approaches faster. Could this make it harder to judge whether it's safe to cross when




9¢ abed

CMDE7

the lights are about to change? A broad line painted back from the kerb and extended railings along the pavement
should help, along with strongly reinforced road safety training and adult vigilance. Would it not be better to wait and
see what all the claims on the West Way s106 amount to, esp re cycling safety and the probable need for a residents’
parking scheme? We already have a pedestrian crossing, even if imperfect. On busy roads in the City pavements have
been widened to overcome the danger of bunched up pedestrians balancing on the kerb waiting to cross the road. On
the north side of West Way high hedges in the gardens to the west of the bus stop make it difficult for pedestrians to

see oncoming traffic. A 20mph speed limit would be helpful and this would be an appropriate time for this to be
introduced.




Agenda Item 8

Division(s): Didcot Ladygrove

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 12 APRIL 2018

DIDCOT: COLLETT AND HAWKSWORTH - PROPOSED WAITING
RESTRICTIONS

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Introduction

1. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to
introduce waiting restrictions on Collett and Hawksworth roads within the
Southmead Industrial Estate at Didcot.

Background

2. The above proposals have been put forward as part of a proposed
commercial development at Hawksworth and in response to concerns over
road safety and traffic delays arising from parking on roads within the
Southmead Industrial Estate Station Road. A plan showing the proposal is
provided at Annex 1.

Consultation

3. An informal local consultation was carried out between 26 July and 25 August
2017 seeking views on the proposals to introduce parking restrictions on
Hawksworth, Collett and Gooch within the Southmead Industrial Estate.
Letters were sent to approximately 130 properties/units within the estate.

4. Following analysis by the Area Traffic Officers of the comments received
(approximately 30) during the informal consultation, the proposals were
refined after which it was decided not to progress most of the restrictions for
Collett and Gooch to formal consultation.

Formal consultation on the amended proposal was then carried out between
15 February and 16 March 2018. A public notice was placed in the Oxford
Times newspaper and sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley
Police, Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, South Oxfordshire District
Council, Didcot Town Council and the local County Councillor. Street notices
were also placed in the vicinity of the proposed waiting restrictions and letters
sent to adjacent properties.

5. Eight responses were received. 3 in support (37%), 3 objectiing (37%) and 2
not objecting but submitting comments These responses are summarised at
Annex 2. Copies of the full responses are available for inspection by County
Councillors.

Page 37



10.

11.

12.

CMDES
Response to objection and other comments

Thames Valley Police did not object to the proposals but felt more emphasis
should be placed on good driver behaviour, noting that potential enforcement
within the Hawksworth area would be an extremely low priority.

Didcot Town Council and South Oxfordshire District Council support the
proposals with a further expression of support received from a local business.

Three objections were received from local businesses. All raised concerns
about the danger and obstruction caused by current parking in the area,
particularly by HGV’s, and requested that the waiting restrictions should be
extended in scope, particularly in view of the likelihood of problems being
locally intensified by the displacement of parking if the current proposals were
introduced. Similar concerns were raised by a respondent who did not,
however, express them as an objection.

It is accepted that the implementation of the proposed restrictions will not fully
resolve the parking issues in this area and that the concerns over the potential
displacement of parking to other areas is a risk. However, the responses to
the informal consultation highlighted that it is likely to be very difficult to fully
cater for the competing demands in this area but it is considered that the
proposals as advertised will be a helpful step in managing parking in the area.
If approved, the effect to the restrictions will be monitored and consideration
given to introducing additional restrictions (subject to a further consultation) if
such a need is identified.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives

The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic.

Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

Funding for the proposed waiting restrictions has been provided from the
developers of land at Hawksworth and from Oxfordshire County Councils
revenue budget.

RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to introduce waiting restrictions on Collett and Hawksworth
roads within the Southmead Industrial Estate at Didcot as advertised.

OWEN JENKINS
Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Background papers: Plan of proposed restrictions & Consultation responses
Contact Officers: Hugh Potter 07766 998704
April 2018

Page 38



|[Existing waiting restrictions|




o abed

CMDES8

ANNEX 2

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

(1) Traffic Management
Officer, (Thames Valley
Police)

No objection - should be reliant on good driver behaviour. Any action by the Police in response to this kind of parking
is governed by many factors. These include the seriousness of the offence, the road and traffic conditions at the time
and the existence of other more pressing commitments for local police officers.

In terms of operational priorities our officers are encouraged to give preference to offences which might directly affect
public safety followed by those which have an impact on traffic flow on main traffic routes. However even those
priorities must be viewed in the context of the many other more pressing and demanding commitments which our
officers face.

(2) Didcot Town Council

Support - Didcot Town Council supports the proposed parking restrictions but feels that they do not go far enough to
address the parking issues on Southmead Industrial Estate. The Town Council also questions the enforcement
capabilities relating to these proposals.

The Town Council would also like to see measures taken to address parking on nearby roads, such as Collett.
Unfortunately, the parking of lorries in unsuitable locations is becoming a problem for the whole town and specific HGV
parking should be considered as an aspiration for the future.

(3) South Oxfordshire
District Council

Support - Further to my comments below, | would also recommend that the proposed 'No waiting at any time' (double-
yellow lines) are extended further down Collett and Hawksworth than the proposed consultation plan indicates.

Since 21 June 2017 we have been investigating complaints relating to overnight sleeping in vehicles along Collett and
Hawksworth, Southmead Industrial Estate, Didcot. The encampments formed as part of these complaints have been
prejudicial to health as a result of a lack of suitable sanitary accommodation with human faeces in close proximity to
the encampments. There is therefore a risk to the health of the persons responsible and the health of persons who
may work in or visit the area. | understand that historically Oxfordshire County Council have also undertaken
enforcement against the occupants of motorhomes acting in a similar manner in the same location.

This can be considered a potential statutory nuisance under the provisions of Part Ill, Sections 79 - 80 of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 as enacted by the Part Xl, Sections 268-269 of the Public Health Act 1936.
However due to the transient nature of the persons responsible and the vehicles involved enforcement under Part VIII
of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 would be more efficient and effective in remedying the issue.




T obed

CMDES8

(4) Local Business,
(Hawksworth)

Object - | would like to ensure that the parking restriction is extended to include the link between Air Products plc and
the roundabout onto Hawksworth. We have had repeated near misses due to lorries parked on this road forcing
vehicles to the wrong side of the road.The current proposal will displace parked vehicle to this section of road and
exacerbate the safety issue.

| have issue with leaving the section of road on Hawkswaorth between the current blue section and the roundabout as
unrestricted parking. Frequently HGVs are parked there and as reported our company has had a number of near
misses with oncoming traffic on the wrong side of the road as a result. Could this section be included in the restricted
parking zones?

(5) Local Business,
(Hawksworth)

Object — We are of the firm opinion that the Council's proposals will simply displace the existing parking issues

to other parts of the estate leading to acute health and safety issues in certain areas. Air Products is most concerned
about the displacement of parking issues to the areas highlighted in yellow on the attached plan at Appendix 1, marked
1 and 2, as follows: -

1. This section of road leading to the roundabout is frequently used by HGVs for parking. As reported to the Council,
Air Products has experienced a number of near misses resulting from parked HGV's forcing oncoming traffic on to the
wrong side of the road. The proposals will exacerbate the issue in this area, heightening the potential for a serious
incident.

2. The land directly in front of Air Products entrance - this is clearly a sensitive area for vehicles, including gas tankers,
accessing and egressing the Air Products site. As above, the proposals will simply displace parking issues to this area,
leading to additional health and safety concerns. Indeed, it should be noted that it is a critical responsibility of the
Council to provide clear access and egress for emergency services to reach Lower tier COMAH sites such as ours.

By way of a solution, we propose and recommend that the parking restrictions are extended to include the two areas
as detailed above. If parking restrictions were extended to these two areas, Air Products would lend its support to the
proposals.

(6) Local Business,
(Hawksworth)

Object — When | had my building built | had to provide enough parking spaces for my employees, the new proposal is
totally unacceptable and the way vehicles park ignores the Highway code rule 242 & 243.

Cars parked on the corner of Gooch make it very difficult to see when trying to pull out and | am sure there will be a
serious accident soon, double yellow lines should be put on both corners and single yellow lines down Gooch

Vehicle parking at Gooch makes vision very poor, as parking is on both sides of the road it also makes it difficult for
delivery vehicles. As | have previously advised it is an accident waiting to happen, you have been advised in writing on
more than one occasion!

(7) Local Business,
(Hawksworth)

Neither — It seems that the two extreme potential accident spots have not been considered.

Parking trucks and often uncoupled trailers opposite the two entrances to Moorbrook present a very great hazard, | and
every member of staff had have near misses, pulling into and out of our estate, as this results in blind spot on
Hawkesworth, worse at the Volvo service building as the road is also on a bend.




2t obed

CMDES8

(8) Local Business,
(Hawksworth)

Support — Could the council also consider some parking restrictions in Gooch, off Collett? The top of the road at the
junction with Collett is full of parked cars, not only on the road but also on the grass verges. This looks unsightly but,
more importantly it is a hazard as it restricts views at the junction.




Agenda ltem 9

Division(s): Kennington & Radley

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 12 APRIL 2018

PROPOSED WAITING RESTRICTIONS
RADLEY STATION, RADLEY

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Introduction

1. This report considers responses and comments received following the
implementation of an Experimental Traffic Regulation Order introducing
parking restrictions in the vicinity of Radley Station.

Background

2. Officers have been aware for a number of years of local concerns about
commuter parking in the vicinity of Radley Station, particularly since the
introduction of charges when the station car park was extended to meet the
growing demand for parking there. Recognising that the station and
associated car park management regime were leading to overspill into local
streets, FGW (the operator of the station) provided funding to facilitate the
introduction of restrictions.

3. A number of meetings have been held with Radley Parish Council, County
Councillor Bob Johnston and local residents to discuss possible options. In
2015 an informal consultation was carried out throughout the village seeking
views on the extent of parking restrictions and in the light of the responses
received the scheme shown at Annex 1 was introduced as an Experimental
Order in late 2016.

4. An Experimental Traffic Order is one where formal consultation takes place
after the scheme is introduced but prior to deciding whether to make the
restrictions permanent.

Responses to the restrictions

5. Immediately prior to the yellow lines being introduced letters were sent to over
500 properties around the village to advise of the forthcoming restrictions and
inviting comments and objections to them. A total of 9 responses were
received — most from residents in the village — all bar one of these was
received within the first few weeks of the restrictions being in place. A
summary of the responses received is at Annex 2. Copies of the

Page 43



CMDE9

correspondence are available in the Members’ Resource room. Whilst
different points were raised by individuals there were two main issues raised
by residents:-

(a) The retention of some parking on Foxborough Road between Lower
Radley Road and the Station entrance road — five respondents felt this
should be removed and parking banned along the whole of this part of
Foxborough Road

(b) The displacement of parking into sections of roads just beyond the ending
of the yellow lines — two respondents raised this in respect of St James
Terrace and another in respect of Stonhouse Crescent.

More recently, Thames Valley Police, Oxford Bus Company and Radley
Parish Council were asked for their views on the operation of the restrictions
in the light of experience. The Police and bus operator responded that they
were working well and requested they remain in place. Radley Parish Council
response made the following points:-

(a) there are still often spaces in the station car park and the Bowyer Arms
has had to put a parking scheme in place. There continues to be damage
to commuters’ cars, particularly those parked on Foxborough Road and St
James Road;

(b) the Council has concluded that the restrictions should be made permanent
but amended to add restrictions between Lower Radley and Spinneys
Close (as cars parked on this make it difficult for people leaving Catharine
Close who have to turn on to the wrong side of the road on a blind bend)
and that the parking currently allowed on Foxborough Road between the
station and the Lower Radley turn should be removed;

(c) that consideration should be given to further restrictions in St James
Terrace/St James Road, but noting that some residents are concerned
that these could push displaced cars further along St James Road to the
junction with Selwyn Crescent. The Parish Council would welcome the
opportunity to discuss alternatives to double yellow lines in this area to
assist local residents.

Conclusions

The restrictions have been in place for over a year and it seems that they
have addressed many of the concerns previously raised, but that there remain
a small number of localised issues. It is, therefore, suggested that the
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order be confirmed and that officers work
with the Parish Council and local Member to bring forward additional
proposals in response of the issues raised by the Parish Council. Should
there be any objections to these additional restrictions, they will be brought
back for consideration and decision in the normal way.

Page 44



CMDE9
How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives

8. The proposals implemented through the Experimental TRO have helped
facilitate the safe movement of traffic, particularly buses.

Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

9. Funding for the Experimental Order was provided by FGW (the train operator)
and that will be sufficient for additional measures set out in this report.

RECOMMENDATION
10. The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to:-

a) approve the making of a permanent traffic regulation order for the
parking restrictions in Radley that were the subject of the
Experimental Order;

b) instruct officers to liaise with Radley Parish Council to develop
additional restrictions, to carry out formal consultation and to report
the results of that consultation to a future meeting (if required).

OWEN JENKINS
Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Background papers: Consultation responses
Contact Officers: Hugh Potter 07766 998704
March 2018

Page 45



ANNEX 1

KEY

No Waiting
at any Time

———— Restrictions in

Experimental

STATION &
CAR PARK [

gunty Council

b 00073343

ight and database rights 2014

Radey Stati

SCALE NTS
OXFORDSHIRE PARKING RESTRICTIONS OATE March 2018
@. @ RADLEY STATION A
= www.oxfordshire.gov.uk RA D L EY DRAN BY

Page 46




/v obed

CMDE9

ANNEX 2

RESPONDENT

COMMENTS

Resident, St James
Road

Some of the areas which have had double yellow lines applied should instead be single yellow lined so that it
has less impact on residents whilst still preventing commuter parking

Resident, St James
Terrace

The areas not covered by the yellow lines now suffer from dangerous parking. Requests that restrictions be
extended further along St James Road up to the junction with Selwyn Crescent

Residents, Badgers
Copse

Is puzzled that an area outside the station still allows parking and continues to cause obstruction to traffic,
particularly buses. Suggests that this parking is removed.

Resident, Radley (no
address given)

Is pleased that action is being taken to manage the commuter parking in Radley but is concerned that the
area immediately outside the station still allows parking which leads to obstruction to traffic.

Resident, Fox Road

Cannot understand why there remains a gap in the yellow lines on Foxborough Road near the station, the
very place where parking causes a blockage

Resident, Radley (no
address given)

Wants the gap in the yellow lines on Foxborough Road near the station, the very place where parking causes
a blockage, to be filled in to stop parking there

Resident, Stonhouse
Crescent

Very disappointed that the parking by the entrance to the station car park remains, causing difficulties for
traffic and cyclists in particular. Also, as a result of the yellow lines is that commuters now park along Church
Road (north of Lower Radley junction) and on Stonhouse Crescent, both of which need addressing

Resident, St Peters
Road, Abingdon

Believes that rather than banning parking on-street the solution to the parking issues in the village would be
to make the station car park free.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 10

Division(s): Faringdon

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 12 APRIL 2018
A420 AT BUCKLAND - PROPOSED BUS STOP CLEARWAYS

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Introduction

1. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to provide
bus stops, including a bus stop clearway on the south side of the road within a
layby, and a pedestrian refuge on the A420 at Buckland, approximately 150
metres north-east of the Buckland Service Station.

Background

2. The above proposal has been put forward as part of a proposed development
on the south side of the A420 at the Buckland Services site. A plan showing
the proposal is provided at Annex 1.

Consultation

3. Formal consultation on the proposal was carried out between 01 February
and 02 March 2018. An email was sent to statutory consultees, including
Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, the
Vale of White Horse District Council, Buckland Parish Council, Pusey Parish
Meeting, local County Councillors, as well as the main public transport
operators

4, Five responses were received. Pusey Parish Meetingobjected and concerns
were raised by Thames Valley Police, the Local County Councillor and
Buckland Parish Council. The Vale of White Horse District did not object.
These responses are summarised at Annex 2. Copies of the full responses
are available for inspection by County Councillors.

Response to objection and other comments

5. Thames Valley Police did not object to the proposal but raise some concerns
and queries, which included the suggestion that providing a bus stop layby at
the proposed stop on the north side of the road would be preferable (as is
proposed for the new stop on the south side) and also that the proposed
clearway within the layby (which is proposed to apply between 7am and 7pm)
adequately catered for the anticipated use of the bus stop and would be of
sufficient length to ensure that buses could pull back onto the A420 safely
should a vehicle be parked in the layby in front of the bus stop.

Page 49



10.

11.

12.

CMDE10

The above concerns are noted although it is not considered viable to provide
a bus stop layby on the north side of the road taking account of the costs and
that land acquisition may well be required. It is, however, agreed that it would
be advisable to extend the hours of operation of the bus stop clearway to
apply between 6am and midnight, and also to extend the clearway marking to
the west to address the concern that buses may be impeded when exiting the
layby by other vehicles parked to the west of the bus stop within the layby.

County Councillor Heathcoat, the local member, while not expressing an
objection to the proposal, noted that the A420 had a poor accident record and
with increasing traffic volumes, the introduction of further bus stops could lead
to potentially more hazards. Her main concern, however, was that the
proposals did not include the provision of a continuous footway between the
development and Buckland village, noting that the development would likely
provide an employment opportunity for local residents (in particular young
people) and also that residents may wish to use the retail store within the
development. A further concern was that the proposed new pedestrian refuge
required a good standard of lighting to ensure road safety, but equally that
that should be designed to minimise light pollution.

It is accepted that the new bus stops and refuge will introduce new potential
conflicts but also it should be noted that the existing bus stops on the A420
thankfully have a very good safety record and there is no reason to expect
that the safety performance of the proposed new stops will be any different. It
is confirmed that lighting will be provided for the refuge and that equipment
will be designed to provide adequate illumination while also minimising light
pollution.

It is agreed that in principle the provision of a footway linking the development
to the Buckland turn would be desirable for the reasons mentioned by
Councillor Heathcoat but, unfortunately, it is not considered possible to
require the developer to fund that provision given that planning consent was
given on the basis of the current proposals. Opportunities for funding this
provision will be explored but it is currently unclear as to whether there is a
realistic prospect of this being progressed at least in the short to medium
term.

The response of Buckland Parish Council noted that the proposed bus stop
provision would, in particular, benefit staff employed at the development site,
though also echoed Councillor Heathcoat’s view of the strong desirability of a
footway to link the site to the Buckland turn for the reasons mentioned above.

Pusey Parish Meeting objected to the proposals on the grounds of road safety
and traffic delays, the likely limited use of the stops and the preference for a
footway linking the site to Buckland and the existing bus stops at the Buckland
turn.

While the above concerns are noted, provision of bus stops close to the
development site is considered to be required to facilitate journeys by staff in
particular to and from the development, given that the existing bus stops by
the Buckland turn are around 500 metres to the east. As discussed above, the

Page 50



13.

14.

15.

16.

CMDE10

existing bus stops on the A420 operate with good levels of safety and without
causing any appreciable delays to traffic and, while it is agreed that a footway
link would be desirable in principle, it is not considered viable to progress this
in the context of the current development.

The Vale of the White Horse District Council did not object.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives

The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic.

Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

Funding for the proposed bus stops, layby and refuge has been provided
from the developers of land adjacent to the A420.

RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet Member for Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to provide bus stops, including a bus stop clearway on the
south side of the road within a layby, and a pedestrian refuge on the
A420 at Buckland, approximately 150 metres north-east of the Buckland
Service Station as advertised.

OWEN JENKINS
Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Background papers: Plan of proposed bus stop clearways

Consultation responses

Contact Officers: Hugh Potter 07766 998704

April 2018

Page 51



Z7C abpd

Diag 610

Timber post and ral
fence min

\ T access
chamber

\

H/‘!/H).

\ o Hoter
“mﬂ -_.

Brass studs provided to mark

highway boundary at fron

(vw) anu buck (1na.) of
Studs ta ba 25mme,

o ong o ilec an

glued in ploce

For cannection to
development see
design by others

Design subject to further
site investigation (heovy
vegetation ot survey;

See drowing 6403 for
construetion details

New cantilever bus shelter, post

and flag to be sunphed
installed by OCE. To

and

cantilevered from bm:k of footway.

BT access
chamber

Service atation
sign

Surface water relocated to

back of footway
manhole with 500mm
clearance to
Timber post and
rall fance min 2.0m footway

&

All rood lining
within 5.278
area to be
remarkad

o4l

e

g

Lining ta have drainaga
breaks every 3.0m

Trim law level
overhanging branches

to maximise visi

for pedestrians at

uncontrolled crossing

8T access
chamber

Naw contilever bus shelter,

o be cantilevered from boc!
of footway,

Ago 7962 Kerbdrain HB30S laid on
ST4 cancrete bed and haunch. To
connect to Aco swale inlet, See
section C—C an drawing 6402,

pest and
flag 1o be supplicd end instalied by
acC.

SIGN REF, B1
Dlag 974
- &
- v ®
No sfopping
BT access Tam-7pm
chamber except buses

subject to further
site investigation (heavy
vegetation ot survey)

e

)
-7 \
=BT
access
= chamber|
= S \
-,
-

\
\
\
N =~

a0 250

DIAGRAM NUMBER  MARK LENGTH | GAP LENGTH LINE WIDTH

TSRGD (2016) (mm {mm) (rnrm}
1003 Continuous 150
1004 4000 2000 100
10124 Continuous 150
1014 Deflection arrow
1025.1 BUS STOP cage marking
1040 4000 2000 100
1049 Continuous with breaks 150

[ RKI

RO.305m
DK
125x150mm Kerb Type €52
laid flush and fall to channel.
PEDESTRIAN REFUGE — [FVELS PEDESTRIAN REFUGE
Sede 150
(E7
[a—
EF
[
™
Sign Face Datalls Glaarances Post Dotalla Lignting Datalls Fosndation | Gommsnts -
sign [Diag No. to|  Description  [Wath[Deptn| '’ [Ramact Hums| Horlz. |Vertical Numbar  Size &| Poat | Eac Ura[ Wattaga | Switeh  Maint  Langth, Wath,
Reference RGD 200 o) o et (mm} | fmm) & 2 M. & e No.& o Desih ——
Length Type {mm)
A 12| Dog 810 | Keep Rt - |me2 - | so0 | 2300 1eu000 sa TSR - | W | - - - TBC  6OOXISSOD “H-
B 1 |Diog 7+ | fus siop cieaway | - - |mme - |0 2300 wewoon 76 TS| - | W | - | - | - Tc  Goosan0 o
s 122 1 o @
s tn b remd it conjancien wn o reren g, documants an spesestions o {ih sy abarpln (Pl Sty f oo
Z e artemoly tumigted signs i posts shol be wide base e L ey wwrptan [1028.1]
I aioe oaad posts 1o b riantor aimie e gt Catega
3 Foundalian badsa thal ba sanerets mi cealon ST+ and corply wilh the Standord Soncrele Mixes NP = Wb oo e Bost i A
§ Al oo ol o S Catordature, Eounty Counci's specifcatans. 960 - T o e B
6. Contrastor 1o submit daslgns proc ] signoge aub~conirasiar “to Engheer Tor pprowi pror ta ordering. B = B of Tonteny -
ranco refers ta lower e
B Hovizantal ciaaronce Lo be mrimum of S0 from tha sdge of sign to kerblacs hers cpplicabia
SIGN SCHFDUIE QD

TABLE &

Layer thickness {mm)
Stone size

* Moximum depth of sub—base is bosed on
an assumed CBR volue of 2.5%. Further site
investigotion required to determine sxoct
CBR value, See Drawing 6403 Table 1.

KEY.
OVERBREAK CARRIAGEWAY CONSTRUCTION
40mm  AC14 close surf 40/60 rec to

BS EN131 2008 min PSV
B0 max AAV 12

60mm  AC20 dense bin 40/80 rec to
BS13108-1: 2006

20mm  AC 6 dense surf 70/100 rec
to BS EN 13108-1: 2006,

60mm  AC 20 dense bin 7u/1uo rec
1o BS EN 13108~

150mm  CBM3 Lean mix wr\crete

Tomm - Type 1 sub-bose (Clouse 503)
where CBR => 5.0% otherwise;

150mm 1 sub—bose (Clouse 803}

Type
where CBR < 5.0%
NB: See Table A and note 7.

125x255x314mm pracast cancrete kerb
{Type CS2 or BN upside down} loid with
grade ST4 concrete bed and haunch.
4—Bmm upstand on low side

125x255x914mm precast cencrete kerh
(Type HB2) laid with grade ST4 concrete
bed and haunch. 125mm Upatand

150x50mmx@14mm precast concrate
edging (Type EF) loid with grade ST+
concrete bed ond haunch.

= 125x255x@14mm precast concrete kerb

{Type Transition) transition from splayed,
to HB2 kerb with grade ST4 concrete

bed and haunch

Limit of Section 278 Works

Bottom of 1:3 embankment

Existing highway boundary

Existing utility occess chomber / cover

New sireet lighting column

Rood marking diagram number
{TSRCD 2002)

Keep left bollard Glusdan

NOTES

1.This drawing ta ba read in conjunction with
relevant documents and speeifications.

2. Dimensians not to be scaled

all

8 Al werks shall be in accordance with Volume 1
the

"Monual of Contract Documants for
mghwuy Works — Specification for Highway
Warks" and Oxfardshire Caunty couni's
specific requirements.

4 Appropriate checks shall be carried aut to
determine the presence of existing services

i
within the oren of interest. All existing services
r to

shall be marked out on the
any construction wmmencmq

ground prior

5. Where covers are to be refained, existing iron
work levela shall be odjusted ta sult the new

levels.

BS EN 1340:2003, loid
ST4 concrate bad and hounch and 150mm

6. All new kerblng shall be precast concrete to
on minimum_150mm

Type | sub base unless indicated otherwise.

7.The maximum and minimum depth for each
layer of surfacing is summarised in Table A.

Whare depth of surfaca layer vorles and Is
tnan minimum depth permissible odditional
surfacing material from following layer shall
used.

8. Carriageway averbreck 1l to be grade ST4.

concrete.

by 300mm inte the adjacent corriagew
construction.
new cariageway jointe shall be located

less

be

. Binder and surface courses shall overlap Joint

oy
In aceordance with IAN 154/12 no
in the

wheel track zane which shall be taken as being

between 0.50metres. and | 10melres and

2.55metres and 3.15metres from the neorside

sdge or kert. However, where corriageway

widening widths are less than 1.0 metre, base
and sub-base shall ba ST1 cencrete with the

same overdll construction depth os the
standard canstruction.

Cornerstane House
62 Foxhall Road, Dideot
Oxen. QX1 7AD

©1 |Issued for CONSTRCTION 23MAT | NF
T Hort
A7 |Updated in accordance with 13/M/17 | WF
Technical Audit eomments: THrt
T/ /2007,
A6 [Straat lighling updated. Whita | 18/10/17 | MF
lining added to footway. ABfenkingcp
A5 |Bys shelter nate omended. 13/00/17 | MF
ABienkiisop
A4 (Updated in accordance with H/BAT| WF
Technical Audit comments THrt
22,/08/2017.
Tescnpion L |0

Glanville

bellard (HSD/1200/015)

Indicates omendments from previous
drawing revision

Chat
Soho House Group
[
Fnrmer Little Chef and Adjaining Land
A420, Buckland
T
5.278 Footway Links and Bus Stops
Construcion Plan
e . Projecl Engiresr . Ford Soals: A Shom @A
Project Direclor . Foudl Dale . Dscamber 2075
s CONSTRUCTION
Dmingle  siesspe0r | 1|




oG abed

CMDE10

ANNEX 2

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

(1) Traffic Management
Officer, (Thames Valley
Police)

Concerns - It is impossible to agree this proposal in the absence of what is proposed for the north side of this road .
Dependant on where the Bus Stop is proposed | fear conflict with the new crossing point. Might | suggest an off road
lay - by is considered the safest option for the north side as well. The layby restriction is timed, does this coincide with
future bus time table? Should large goods vehicles park forward of the new Bus Stop Clearway ,will a Bus still be able
to exit safely.

(2) Buckland Parish
Council

Neither - made its views known on the proposed bus stop provision as part of our consultation on the planning
applications for this site.

November 2015 Consultation extract - BPC is supportive of a sustainable use for this prominent site but is mindful of
the impact of this site in the area and setting. We consider these amendments an improvement given the commitment
to secure safe access to bus stops for staff and possibly customers. BPC considers that a footpath to the existing
Buckland Turn bus stops would be a better solution than the introduction of 2 new stops so close to 2 sets of existing
bus stops. December 2016 consultation extract - Footpath to existing Buckland Turn Bus Stops - the proposed
additional rooms and correspondingly increased profitability of the development will make it viable for the developer to
pay for a footpath along the south of the A420 to the existing Buckland Turn Bus Stops. This will negate the need for
expenditure on 2 new bus stops, which BPC feels will see little use, and provide a secure pedestrian link from
Buckland Village to the development as well as from the development and BP garage/M&S to the bus stops for staff
and customers.

(3) Local County
Councillor, (Faringdon
Division)

Concerns - | wish to ensure that if these bus stops are to be installed that, as much consideration as possible is given
to pedestrian safety and traffic safety — the A420 is notorious for its accident history especially in this area in my
Division.

» Traffic is ever increasing travelling both east and west with the housing development taking place both in my
Division and in the Swindon area.

» Traffic weight is increasing too — commercial traffic/transporters all types of HGV’s and farm vehicles. For a bus
to make an entry into this traffic flow is getting increasingly more difficult — | see and experience these
difficulties travelling the A420 daily. Having an additional bus “pull-in” with cause further traffic difficulties.

* There are of course already 4 bus stops servicing this area both on the eastward and the westward bound
journey of the A420 — 2 situated at or near the Buckland/Gainfield junction and then further along at Pusey
Furze.

+ | would like the footpath that is being proposed just by the 2 new bus stops to be extended up to the existing




G abed

CMDE10

bus stops at the Buckland junction on both sides of the road — this will ensure that those alighting from the
bus are safe traversing to work from each of the bus stops to the travel lodge and equally, and most
importantly the local community can walk to their employment from the village of Buckland in complete
safety too. There will be local employment (young people from the village will be drawn to working at this
development) and there will be pedestrian traffic to the M&S shop for groceries and the daily paper.
Currently there is no safe way for people to undertake this route.

The proposed new pedestrian safe haven MUST be well lighted to ensure safety to those crossing the road as
traffic is travelling at a minimum speed of 50mph and many break the statutory speed on the A420.
However, care must be taken to ensure there is no light pollution to the inhabitants of the village who have
no street lighting.

If there is no way that the footpath can be extended as | would like then the preference for me is that with this
development there must be benefit to the local community of Buckland and | would confirm that an
extended footpath from the already existing bus stops at the Buckland/Gainfield junction are installed.

(4) Vale of White Horse
District Council

No objection.

(5) Pusey Parish Meeting

Object — In summary:

Pusey will not benefit, and may even be disadvantaged (see below), by the new bus stops.

There is no Little Chef, so why is this being pursued.

There is no footpath to the stops, except from the site of the new motel. How will people get to and from the
stops? And if they do go there for the buses, will they be able to park at the motel without using it?

Any bus stopping on the East going side will create a blockage on the A420, which can be congested anyway,
and the pedestrian refuge is a further obstruction near a junction — is that sensible?

There are bus stops about 500m West, at the Buckland junction. These must remain, as the best site to serve
Buckland. So will buses stop at the new ones as well?

A stop on the North side would encourage pedestrians to cross the road where there is no pavement or path to
anywhere else, which is dangerous anyway.

There are footpaths that come to the A420 from Buckland and Pusey, 200 m West of the motel site. It would be
far more sensible to make a safer crossing point there, and a pavement along the road between the
Buckland crossroads and the motel/filling station, if there is money to be spent.

All'in all, this appears to be a project that dates from a time when the Little Chef was there, and is now out of date.
Why has it not taken account of the changed circumstances? Is it that there is money to be spent in the programme,
and it has a momentum that cannot be stopped?

Are the proposed bus stops to enable staff to get to and from the site? If so, this seems exceptional, and possibly
unjustified. It would reinforce the view that a pavement from the existing Buckland stops along the South side of the




GG abed

CMDE10

A420 would be a better solution.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 11

Division(s): Burford & Carterton North

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 12 APRIL 2018

SWINBROOK AND WIDFORD - PROPOSED 20MPH AND 30MPH
SPEED LIMITS

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery
Introduction

1. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to
introduce a 20mph speed limit in place of the existing 30mph limit at
Swinbrook and a 30mph speed limit at Widford.

Background

2. The above proposals have been put forward by Swinbrook and Widford
Parish Council in response to concerns over road safety and the wider
adverse impact of traffic on residents and visitors to the villages of Swinbrook
and Widford. The roads in the villages are frequently used by pedestrians,
cyclists and equestrians and, if approved, would be funded by the parish
council. A plan showing the proposals is provided at Annex 1.

3. As part of the technical appraisal for the proposals, speed surveys were
carried out at four locations (three in Swinbrook and one in Widford) whichese
showed current speeds within the villages to be largely compliant with the
advice issued by the Department for Transport in respect of the proposed
speed limits.

Consultation

4. Formal consultation on the proposal was carried out between 24 January and
16 February 2018. A public notice was placed in the Witney & West
Oxfordshire Gazette newspaper and sent to statutory consultees, including
Thames Valley Police, Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, West
Oxfordshire District Council, Swinbrook and Widford Parish Council, Burford
Town Council and the local County Councillor.

5. Fifty-eight responses were received, comprising 34 (59%) expressions of
support and 24 (41%) objections in respect of the proposed 20mph speed
limit at Swinbrook and 36 expressions of support (62%), 3 (5%) objections
and 19 (33%) responses not objecting or commenting in respect of the
proposed 30mph at Widford.

6. These responses are summarised at Annex 2. Copies of the full responses
are available for inspection by County Councillors. The report in support of the

Page 57



10.

11.

12.

CMDE11

proposals received from Swinbrook and Widford Action Group for
Responsible Driving (SWARD) is included at Annex 3.

Response to objections and other comments

While Thames Valley Police considered that the proposed 30mph speed limit
at Widford complied with national guidance, they objected to the proposed
20mph speed limit at Swinbrook due to concerns that speeds outside the core
of the village were higher than advised by guidance for a ‘sign only’ 20mph
limit. They recommended that consideration should be given to providing
supporting traffic calming measures.

The above concerns of the police are noted and it is accepted that the current
average speeds at the entries to the proposed limit at Swinbrook will be
higher than the recommended level of 24mph for a 20mph limit without
supporting traffic calming measures. However, it is considered that as these
concerns relate to a small proportion of the village roads as a whole it would
be reasonable in this instance to introduce and monitor the proposed 20mph
limit and then assess if there is a need or not for low cost supporting
measures (for example the placing of a carriageway roundel at the entries to
the limit).

The other objections (23) to the proposed 20mph limit included concerns that
the proposal was unnecessary taking account of the current speeds and
absence of any reported higher severity accidents within the village, that it
would have a minimal impact on speeds, especially taking account of the
likely absence of police enforcement and be a poor use of public funds.
Additionally, some respondents expressed concerns that the additional speed
limit signing would be visually intrusive. It is accepted that the introduction of a
20mph speed limit without supporting additional traffic calming measures will
not — on the basis of speed monitoring carried out for other 20mph speed limit
projects — lead to a major change in speeds, at least in the short term, with a
reduction in average speeds of around 1mph being realistic, noting that the
police do not have the resources to carry out enforcement of such limits, and
that the absence of any reported accident history in the village in the latest 5
years would further reduce the priority for the available police resources.

Noting the concerns over the potential adverse visual impact of a 20mph limit,
while there will be a need for a small number of additional speed limit repeater
signs, this will not materially change the amount of speed limit signing in the
village given that there are already repeater signs for the existing 30mph limit.

The three objections to the proposed 30mph speed limit at Widford included
the same concerns as expressed in relation to the proposed 20mph speed
limit at Swinbrook.

The broader concerns on whether a 20mph speed limit is a sensible use of

public funds is a matter for Swinbrook and Widford Parish Council - as funder
of the project - to determine.

Page 58



13.

14.

15.

16.

CMDE11

The balance of opinion expressed by respondents is supportive of both
proposals, and there is clear evidence of strong local concern over the
dangers and loss of amenity to residents and visitors to the area, in particular
walkers, cyclists and equestrians expressed both by individual respondents
and in the report submitted by the Swinbrook and Widford Action Group for
Responsible Driving.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives
The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic.
Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

Funding for the proposed speed limits has been provided by Swinbrook and
Widford Parish Council.

RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to introduce a 20mph speed limit in place of the existing
30mph limit at Swinbrook and a 30mph speed limit at Widford as
advertised.

OWEN JENKINS
Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Background papers: Plan of proposed speed limits

Consultation responses

Contact Officers: Hugh Potter 07766 998704

April 2018

Page 59



WIDFORD (SWINBROOK) - PROPOSED 30MPH SPEED LIMIT OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT
\ \)}7 7 / ouw™ I PR iRl 7,.C Y
/ \ % 1 5 & oy
Ad24 ot o®  ad 0% Proposed 30mph speed limit
Pain's Farm EaatHul Bushes in place of curremt NSL (60mph)
= Cottages 4 2 1 Ohd * 2
4 Taynton P esees Proposed 20mph speed limit ||
R \ Gt 7 R (Q\ S in place of current 30mph limit =
| i T =1 T\ 4 ain'sy, o's 124m - 4
,\,, \‘ A :-'-"‘ ():/kf“\(ﬁ,Leigh Crawloy D ‘9‘ Par » QQN/ L ) _
- & - \ b
\\/@ s - N
, <
T )
ST
oy &

i ===
'ﬂ 0 5 | ni >

fos o ‘\ J/. - !\_dln Minster vall
r sl Asthall Y \{LOV(&“ vee S{/’\ \)
vell ’ /X Charterville 70%; ,
() o / Allotments 7/ = S

" | ({‘%

3 SWINBROOK AND

o Track _
7\ 4"”__,_,./,-7‘"/“.‘
N
N
\
| 1
1 ) Quarry
\5/ {disused)

AE=—"=5

Va i
‘Holwellff — -
IR |
4 © AN %
Q 4 ‘\ s_ ’2}3‘“’“ \ . :ﬂ 106m
S / WIDFORD CP
U Rt .

vl (g

rove "\ CARTERTON QD"‘%  Noriop guck"ngmn .
\& ! Aﬂ JaN f | o
A3t‘1 --4\ / Lew - .. f
a6 - / r
; f | { \

Holywsll
Bamn

b
N =]
2 e W
5
@ Poulten’s Walk @
Spinney S
(D g
f
(o)) / .
o j :
i
f i1
7/ Reservoir i’
1 (covered) I
{ i |-
i i
/; }
It i //
. 4 132m ~Worl
(s.uoﬂ/__\;;“/ o s |r' 5 .
my <" "-Ne The q A 4 (disusad) % |
e [y £ _'e e 123m‘\(\:; ; ! .
oo L= Swinbrook == B P2~ -
3 winbrook — (discsedh / :
e il £/ !
Broadclose i /; {
=y R i
N £ . 3 !
e 1 PH/\
A
B Sl - 7“" ey

ROMAN BUILDING
{remains of)

Kite
F:

\M\J\

Slui:: \ \ N |
NI\

\ y
1 VA
he s AN ,"";’ l\ / Pp
g A > \ Ho
/ Kmmﬂ \ / St / /R m.——@;’g
bre, \ _ N C AW e Ashanl\
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright . .
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. OXFORDSHIRE Date drawn: 2'" 1112017 . Map centre:
Oxfordshire County Council. ® Crown Copyright and database rights 2017. 100023343 COUNTY COUNCIL Drawn by: CJM easting. 427950, northing. 212480




T9 abed

CMDE11

ANNEX 2

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

(1) Traffic Management
Officer, (Thames Valley
Police)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — to the sections where current speeds are higher than the accepted criteria. The core
part of this village would meet our policy but outside these bounds require consideration to calming for compliance in
our view.

30mph Speed Limit — No objection — is within the accepted guidelines and is accepted without comment on that basis.

(2) Swinbrook and
Widford Action Group for
Responsible Driving

Support — (see report in Annex 3)

(3) Local Resident,
(unknown)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - Swinbrook Village was never designed to accommodate the volume of traffic nor the
existing speed in which the majority of vehicles pass through the area and over the years Swinbrook has become a rat
run between the B4437 and A40. It has now reached a stage where the current speed limit of 30mph presents a clear
and present danger to pedestrians and traffic in general because the lanes are too narrow and there are numerous
blind spots, with very few places where vehicles can pass each other safely.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(4) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - 20 mph speed limit is unlikely to be cost effective and will achieve little. Average speeds
through Swinbrook are already low and a 20 mph limit will on the basis of other such result only in a one mph
reduction in average speed.The number of cars going through the village prevents anyone going too fast as there is
usually another one coming the other way and care has to be taken passing. In over 30 years of riding horses and
walking dogs through the village | have never had a problem. The road is a public one and not just for people who live
in the village. Signs warning of riders, cyclists and walkers would be more cost effective.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - This is a narrow piece of road regularly used by walkers and tourists from Burford
going from one footpath to another, and lies on a slight bend and road junction. Cars certainly need to slow down.

(5) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - the single track lane through Swinbrook has recently become a rat run for traffic and
with this increased speeds have been experienced. As a resident who lives directly on the lane | have regularly
experienced cars driving at excessive speeds past our house. This lane is used by horse riders, cyclists & pedestrians
including families with young children and pushchairs. It is only a matter of time before a serious accident is
experienced

30mph Speed Limit - Support. This village is very popular with cyclists who cycle the national cycle route 47 which
goes right through the village. Also the Village is part of a number of popular circular walks where people have to walk




29 abed

CMDE11

a short distance along the road to pick up the Public Footpath. Pedestrians are unaware that this road can be busy with
traffic and similarly traffic can be unaware that there may be walkers and cyclists in the middle of the ; signs alerting
drivers (such as signs displaying walkers, horse riders, cyclists) this should also be considered along with a reduced
speed limit.

(6) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment
30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(7) Local Resident,
(unknown)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - The roads through the village are mainly single track that are regularly used by
walkers, cyclists and horse riders. There are no footpaths or lighting. However, the volume and the speed of traffic has
increased over recent years and this brings significant risk to walkers, cyclists and riders alike .

30mph Speed Limit - Support - The road through Widford is used as a rat run to Burford and is a very quick road
despite being used by many walkers and cyclists, forming part of a national cycle route. The road is relatively wide and
straight in places which encourages some people to drive at speeds which are inappropriate for a village environment.

(8) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - The lane through Swinbrook is narrow & winding with a wider variety of users,
including walkers, cyclists & riders, as well as motor traffic. The proposed reduction in the speed limit should assist
considerably in this respect and make the road much safer.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(9) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support — while accepting that compliance may be low, need to start somewhere to manage
speeds better. My drive exit and those of both immediate neighbours are totally blind as we exit our drives This lane
daily has walkers, horse riders and cyclists also at risk.

30mph Speed Limit - Support

(10) Local Resident,
(unknown)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - | support the proposal because we need to improve safety in Swinbrook where drivers
too often drive through the village in an inconsiderate manner and with disregard for safety and the need to protect
verges and drystone walls lining the lane. The number of vehicles using the lane has increased massively since the
30mph speed limit was introduced.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - The lane passes very close to a number of homes in Widford and a speed limit of
30mph should increase safety.

(11) Local Resident,
(Milton under Wychwood)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - | feel it is ridiculous to spend so much money replacing signs, etc when the majority of
people drive through at well less than 30 mph anyway and those that do tend to speed would continue to do so. There
is hardly likely to be any official policing of the limit.

30mph Speed Limit - Neither - no comment

(12) Local Resident,
(Burford)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - the speed restriction would be highly beneficial to slow traffic (a) reducing the risk to
vulnerable road users (walkers, cyclists and riders in particular) and (b) allowing drivers to react sooner when meeting
approaching vehicles on the frequent single lane sections and using passing places rather than eroding the verges by




g abed

CMDE11

squeezing past each other.

30mph Speed Limit - Support -The road through Widford is narrow and cars need to slow down considerably to pass
each other in any event. Drivers unfamiliar with the route (particularly on occasions when the A40 is blocked for some
reason) drive excessively fast through the hamlet as there is no warning that it is being approached. Furthermore, the
junction from Widford End Road into the through route is completely blind as there is a house right on the corner.
Several properties in Widford have their gardens or car parking areas across the road from the house, increasing the
risk of pedestrian/vehicle conflict.

(13) Local Resident,
(swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - 1) the repeated Traffic & Speeding tests showed no excessive average speeding

2) there have been no fatal accidents on the stretch of the proposed speed limit

3) there have been no serious accidents on this stretch of road

4) a statutory speed limit of 20 mph is un-enforceable and will not have any effect

5) | support a 'voluntary ' speed limit of 20mph as in Barrington, Glos

6) the accident hotspot is on road leading down from A40 just before the cricket field and cross road to Burford; this
stretch of road should have a 30mph limit

30mph Speed Limit - Neither - 1) the stretch of road through Widford should have a 30 mph limit

(14) Local Resident,
(Widford)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment
30mph Speed Limit - Support - Important safety and quality of life issue and this is a long overdue step forward.

(15) Local Resident,
(Widford)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - All of the comments below on the Widford stretch of road are also valid for the
Swinbrook roads and speed reduction.

Swinbrook additionally suffers from the problem of traffic avoiding the Burford High St queues to cross the bridge
across the Windrush by coming off the A40 at Asthall Turn or turns more directly to Swinbrook.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - The stretch of road for the proposed 30 mph speed limit in Widford is regularly used by
pedestrians, organised walking groups (often 15 or more in number), individual cyclists, cycling teams (often of 20 or
more in number), motor bikes, cars, delivery vehicles, dog walkers and horse riders (sometimes with additional horses
on leads). Many of the walkers are there under recommendation of tourist web sites and the Burford tourist office.
Many of the cyclists are there because this stretch of road is part of the National Cycle Route. There have been an
increasing number of occasions over the past 15 years where accidents or blockages on the A40 or in Burford have
caused diversions through Widford and Swinbrook often for several hours - partly due to the increased use of satellite
navigation in cars. Besides making this stretch of road more hazardous for all users, the immediate roadside verges




79 abed

CMDE11

are being worn away by cars whose drivers are not prepared to slow down to enable safe passage. Thus, the verges
acting as a refuge for pedestrians are gradually diminishing and increasing the idea to drivers that they can use yet
more of the road width and hence not reduce their speed appropriately.

(16) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - As a resident in the centre of Swinbrook with over 600 vehicles passing our house per
day and as a dog walker | feel strongly that safety should be improved by reducing the speed limit.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - As a user of this section of road on a regular basis both as a driver and a walker |
strongly recommend reducing the speed limit in an attempt to increase safety at little or no cost to future users.

(17) Local Resident,
(Widford)

20mph Speed Limit - Support — no comment

30mph Speed Limit - Support - As we live on the main road through Widford with a baby, we would welcome the
speed limit being reduced. Currently vehicles travel too fast along a single track road with a number of turnings.
Vehicles rarely give way as they are unable to stop due to the speed they are travelling and end up running over the
grass areas. A lower speed limit will help to prevent this.

(18) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - The road running through Swinbrook village has mixed usage..mixed vehicle traffic,
dog walkers, joggers, tourist groups, ramblers, horse riders, groups of cyclists and much local pedestrian
activity...therefore, it is a 'mixed space' environment. The road is narrow with a number of blind corners and a fair share
of potholes, surely, it would be sensible to have a reduced speed limit for motor vehicles. We support this whole
heartedly...and hope to see this implemented before someone is seriously injured.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - our comments above for Swinbrook apply equally to Widford

(19) Local Resident,
(Swinrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - Evidence shows that the majority of vehicles are not travelling in excess of 22mph. A
reduction to 20mph is of no great significance . The issue is traffic VOLUME not speed - speed is of far greater issue
on the outbound road towards Shipton under Wychwood. Furthermore a 20mph speed limit is no more Enforceable
than the current 30mph. There are signs asking for people to drive at 20mph already... it's unlikely that spending 4-6k
pounds of council money will make any dramatic difference. The volume of traffic through the village is increasing
exponentially and is what ultimately requires addressing particularly paying attention to people using the road as a "rat
run" - unaware that local users include farm machinery, horses and riders, walkers and cyclists and failing to take this
into consideration when driving through and becoming frustrated at delays... | believe THIS is the problem. They are
avoiding the traffic issues at Burford.... long term this it the problem that requires addressing, not speed in the village.

30mph Speed Limit - Neither - If this is going to be regularly enforced then it may be worth doing - however, in this
case then the road heading out to Shipton Under Wychwood is just as important as the majority of road users
(frustrated at having to keep stopping to let oncoming traffic pass in the village and on the narrow roads) speed with
little or no regard for other road users or the narrowness of the road.




G9 abed

CMDE11

(20) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - | work and drive through Swinbrook all week long 10 times a day sometimes and find it
virtually impossible to do more than 30 on most stretches of road.If you are walking or standing in the road and a car
passes by it always feels as if it's going faster than it should.

30mph Speed Limit - Neither - no comment

(21) Local Resident,
(Widford)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - As a regular walker along the lanes through Swinbrook over the past 20 years it has
become increasingly busy with many vehicles travelling too fast especially making it unsafe for people on foot, with
children, dogs or on horse back as cars and lorries use the village road as a "cut through" to avoid the bridge in
Burford. The destruction of the grass verges, even where they form a steep bank has been the result of drivers failing
to adapt to the conditions.

30mph Speed Limit - Support Cars, lorries, farm vehicles all share the narrow road with cyclists, walkers (including
many using a very popular circular walking route and horse riders;The road is on a national cycle route and is very
well used by cyclists.Much of the increase in traffic over recent years is due to vehicles choosing this road solely to
miss the traffic in Burford and the A40.

(22) Local Resident,
(Asthall)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment
Omph Speed Limit - Neither - no comment

(23) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment
30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(24) Local Resident,
(Burford)

20mph Speed Limit - Support. The route through Swinbrook is increasingly used as a rat run by through traffic which
avoids the bottle neck on Burford High Street. This is leading to vehicles being driven at excessive speed on such a
narrow road with sharp bends and no protection for other road users. The road is mainly a single lane width with
passing places and a 20 mph limit is far more appropriate than 30 mph.

30mph Speed Limit - Support. Drivers unfamiliar with the route drive excessively fast through the hamlet as it is un-
signed. Furthermore, the junction from Widford End Road into the through route is completely blind as there is a house
right on the corner. Several properties in Widford have their gardens or car parking areas across the road from the
house, increasing the risk of pedestrian/vehicle conflict.

(25) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — Many drivers will be unlikely to pay any attention to 20 mph road signs; and are even
less likely to adjust their speed accordingly in the knowledge that the 20mph speed limit is impossible to enforce or
police; the £5,000 outlay on speed limit signs would achieve little. But signage which alerts drivers to the fact that they
share the narrow roadway through the village with pedestrians, cyclists and horses might be an alternative?




99 abed

CMDE11

30mph Speed Limit - Support - A 30mph speed limit through Widford makes good sense.

(26) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - We live in the middle of the affected area. We believe 30mph is a dangerous speed for
cars to be travelling past our house. There is insufficient route visibility on the twisting, single track road for these
speeds to be safe. Driving out of our garage on to the road is often dangerous and we've had a few near misses,
particularly in poor weather conditions. In addition, we often walk through the village with our puppy and kids. Cars
travelling at 30mph make little effort to slow down when taking a blind corner and then pass our (high spirited!) young
ones leaving very little excess space..

30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(27) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - We live in the middle of the affected area. We believe 30mph is a dangerous speed for
cars to be travelling past our house. There is insufficient route visibility on the twisting, single track road for these
speeds to be safe. Driving out of our garage on to the road is often dangerous and we've had a few near misses,
particularly in poor weather conditions. In addition, we often walk through the village with our puppy and kids. Cars
travelling at 30mph make little effort to slow down when taking a blind corner and then pass our (high spirited!) young
ones leaving very little excess space. It has been pretty scary on occasion.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(28) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - We have children and dogs and regularly walk through the village and have had a
number of near misses. Drivers use the village as a rat run on their morning and afternoon commutes, and at many
points in the village there are blind bends/ corners and even cars travelling at 30 miles are dangerous.

Hence, in the interest of all pedestrians/ cyclists/ horse riders and drivers. A reduced speed limit 20 mph will make the
roads in the villlages much safer.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - The road at this point is narrow, and difficult for two cars to pass each other safely
without slowing down significantly . The area is also part of a marked footpath, where walkers have to walk down the
road to rejoin the footpath towards either Burford or Swinbrook.

A reduced speed limit will make the road much safer for all road users.




/9 abed

CMDE11

(29) Local Resident,
(unknown)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - no comment
30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(30) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - The timing of this could not come at a better time as the spring is upon us and the road
through the village becomes busier as the weather improves with hundreds of walkers and cyclists. More so on the
weekends when the road through the village is packed with children cyclists dog walkers enjoying this designated area
of outstanding natural beauty.

The area in and around the pub (swan) is very busy with all of the above and large amounts of parked cars on the road
through this area of the vacillate especially can only help for the safety of everyone including people driving cars vans
etc going on their daily business or routine.

The road through the viallge is a signed and designated single track road and has no official marked passing places.
As a qualified hgv driver with 20 years of driving experience, | can only see the positives of this change to 20 mph, to
benefit the whole community and for the safety of visitors.

My comments are a true reflection of what | as an individual believe and hope they are taken into account in giving the
village what we need and want.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - The area proposed should be 30 or even 20 and to think the road is rated as 60 mph is
beyond believe.

There are very limited views coming from the bridge area and private car park opposite, on a section of road that
becomes very narrow for all road users.

| beleive it is a matter of safety that the speed limit is changed.

(31) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment
30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(32) Local Resident,
(unknown)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - As a local resident of Widford and a regular cyclist/walker | fully support this proposal.
Whilst walking with a colleague through Swinbrook a car actually clipped a hand as it sped past us. | believe with the
increase in car population this is a limit well overdue.




g9 abed

CMDE11

30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(33) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment
30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(34) Local Resident,
(Widford)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment
30mph Speed Limit - Support - no comment

(35) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - Even though it is VERY HARD to drive through this village at 30mph, a surprising
number of drivers try to do this, and there is frequently evidence of minor accidents. Many cars also drive close to
pedestrians; with a 20mph limit most drivers would drive at 24 rather than 30 and may be more understanding that we
are entitled to share the road with them.

30mph Speed Limit - Support - It is completely crazy that Widford is 60 mph. The visibility in the centre of Widford
when you come across 2 children on bikes or 10 hikers is about 3 car lengths. The inappropriate speed of many drivers
means that families have to literally throw themselves into the hedgerows and precariously perch in muddy trenches
where the verges have been eroded - as many cars will barely slow down.

(36) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - Many drivers do not accept that we need to share the road and | hope this will make
them more considerate and understanding.....

30mph Speed Limit - Support - This is a dangerous place to walk with currentb60 mph limit. | am sure most drivers will
think this is a good initiative

(37) Local Resident,
(unknown)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - Both speed surveys showed an average speed of 24 mph through the village in the 30
mph zone, regardless of whether the gadgets that recorded the speed were placed on a bend or on a straight piece of
road.There is no history of serious accidents in the village. Considering the number of vehicles shown in the speed
surveys to drive through the village, this shows that people are driving with due care and attention.l understand that the
police are not likely to support an application for 20 mph and that it is not easily enforceable.

30mph Speed Limit - Support — | would support an application for a 30 mph zone on either side of the cross roads but
feel it is not necessary to extend it up the no through road to the houses at the top. The road to Burford is used by
many walkers and also many people park up the no through road and the when emerging from the side road to return
to Swinbrook or Burford visibility is very poor.




69 abed

CMDE11

(38) Local Resident,
(unknown)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - | think that the speed through the village will not be reduced by the implementation of a
20 mile an hour speed limit which cannot be enforced .The survey shows the average speed of vehicles through the 30
mile zone is negligible .The layout of the road and the potholes through the village prohibit speeding through the village
. In my opinion any new speed limit imposed on Swinbrook is not necessary and achieve very little and would not be
cost effective

30mph Speed Limit - Support —no comment

(39) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - The single track lane, with many blind corners and the occasional passing place, that
winds through the length of Swinbrook , a village in an area of outstanding natural beauty, is used extensively by
pedestrians, often carrying small children or pushing a pram, dog walkers , cyclists and horse riders. There are no
footpaths alongside the lane and so all users are forced to utilise the shared space of the tarmac surfaced road.

The speed and the volume of traffic has, over time, resulted in extensive and significant vertical and lateral erosion of
the natural verges making it both extremely difficult for users to get off the road quickly and causing damage to
property. Furthermore, it is becoming increasingly difficult for some residents to drive into and exit their properties
safely given the speed at which some cars, vans and trucks travel.

30mph Speed Limit - Support — as above

(40) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — no comment

30mph Speed Limit - Object — no comment

(41) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - The exponential increase in traffic and users of the road has resulted in this
being an undeniable necessity, on the grounds of safety.

30mph Speed Limit - Support — as above

(42) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support — no comment

30mph Speed Limit — no comment




0/ abed

CMDE11

(43) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - | watch someone driving at speed through the village and pray that someone on a bike
, horse or with a baby buggy isn’t coming the other way around the blind corner. Too many times | have heard the
screeching of breaks as cars narrowly miss each other right outside our window.

| have nearly met my end twice on the lane outside our house (once when | was loading my small child into the back of
the car and a van hit black ice and broadsided our car.)

It is a matter of time before there is a terrible accident here. Reducing the speed limit is a very positive step to stopping
that from happening.

30mph Speed Limit - Support — as above

(44) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - 1. Whilst the volume of traffic is probably average for this type of village, the
proportion of cars that are not driving safely for the road conditions (single track road with numerous blind bends) is
high. When driving through the village | have been forced to make emergency stops or pull sharply off the road to
avoid collisions on many, many occasions. During the recent poor weather, | narrowly avoided head-on collision when
one driver travelling too fast on the road was unable to stop. Equally when on foot | find myself having to signal to
drivers to slow because even at 30mph coming round a blind corner on narrow road is too fast, especially when not
considering the possibility of pedestrian traffic which is unusually high owing to tourism in the village.

2. If there were to be an accident the likelihood that it would be serious is very high. No doubt you are familiar with
road traffic accident statistics, but on rural roads like ours that are winding and single track especially where foot traffic
is high, were there to be an accident involving a pedestrian it would have a greater than 50% chance of resulting in a
fatality - higher than urban areas or motorways. | take this statistic personally because it could easily be me or my
child involved.

3. Statistics from traffic monitoring only tell half the story. The percentage of cars travelling at much higher speed than
the limit was significant and a serious risk to foot traffic which wasn't measured and as | have said is high.

30mph Speed Limit — no comment




T/ obed

CMDE11

(45) Local Resident,
(Widford)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — have never seen anyone speeding. Don'’t try to mend something that’s not broken.

30mph Speed Limit — no comment

(46) Local Resident,
(Widford)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — do not think it necessary and would not like to see any other signage in and around our
lovely villages.

30mph Speed Limit — no comment

(47) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - the only time we were really troubled by the road was when traffic was forced to use the
road as the result of an accident on the A40 or A361 . It was brought to a standstill on those occasions but at other
times the traffic was almost always moving at less than 30 mph , indeed it would be foolish to attempt a greater speed
at any time , as you never know what you might meet...and where the next pothole is going to appear . We think that
the formal reduction in speed limit is quite unnecessary and would urge you not to invoke the reduction

30mph Speed Limit - Object — as above

(48) Local Resident,
(unknown)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - not cost effective.

30mph Speed Limit - Object — as above

(49) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — The money would be better spent on filling in the pot holes, which cause damage to all
of our cars.

30mph Speed Limit — no comment

(50) Local Resident,
(unknown)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - feel 30 mph is the correct speed limit. Mostly when traveling through the village you
don’t hit 30 mph anyway, but 20MPH is to slow.




2/ obed

CMDE11

30mph Speed Limit — no comment

(51) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - the volume of traffic has increased beyond belief, as is the case throughout the whole of
Britain | would imagine. | do not however feel the speed of traffic has increased any, infact sheer volume probably
keeps speed down as drivers are likely to meet traffic coming in the opposite direction along the single track road. |
would also note that in all that time | can only recall 3 accidents, 2involving horses of which the riders lost control no
vehicle involved the other being an elderly village resident whose car skidded on ice when taking the bend outside our
house. There may be more | can't recall but to best of my knowledge there has never been a serious road accident in
the village. This leads me to believe that traffic travelling through the village does so in a safe & considerate manner.

This is also backed up by 2 speeding surveys both of which put average speed through the village at just 24mph.
| feel that reducing the speed limit would be a complete waste of time & valuable resources to everyone involved &
would like to formally object to this proposal

30mph Speed Limit — no comment

(52) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object - | feel this would be a complete waste of time & money as traffic does not speed through
the village as backed up by 2 speed monitoring surveys & since there have been no serious accidents drivers are
obviously driving with care & consideration.

30mph Speed Limit — no comment

(53) Local Resident,
(Swinbrook)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — a waste of money.

30mph Speed Limit — no comment

(54) Local Resident,
(Minster Lovell)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — no comment

30mph Speed Limit — no comment




¢/ obed

CMDE11

(55) Local Resident,
(Asthall)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — Maybe install caution signs (please drive carefully).

30mph Speed Limit — no comment

(56) Local Resident,
(Asthall)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — Signs instead to make people more aware of the hazards.

30mph Speed Limit — no comment

(57) Local Resident,
(Burford)

20mph Speed Limit - Object — Not cost effective.

30mph Speed Limit — no comment

(58) Local Resident,
(unknown)

20mph Speed Limit - Support - | know the question of speed limit has  raised tensions in the village, but I write this in
the hope that it might bring us together in recognising a problem. People - especially non-villagers - are not treating
these narrow, winding roads with the respect they deserve, especially when weather conditions make them even more
difficult.

30mph Speed Limit - Support — as above.




ANNEX 3
CMDE11

Ao

ﬁ;;\ﬂjﬁ

REDUCTION OF SPEED LIMITS IN
SWINBROOK AND WIDFORD

CONTENTS

e Introduction

e The context

o Views of Residents

e Views of Visitors

e OCC Speed Monitoring events

e Conclusions and Recommendations
e References

e Appendices

INTRODUCTION

This report presents a case for reducing the present speed limits in Swinbrook and Widford. It is written on
behalf of concerned residents, local visitors and tourists to support the speed reductions as part of the
Parish initiative to create a safer environment for all road users. The lower speed limits would highlight the
nature of the village lanes and are intended to encourage drivers to adopt appropriate and safe speeds
when sharing the roads with vulnerable road users. This report is sponsored and authored by
representatives of the Swinbrook and Widford Action Group for Responsible Driving (SWARD).

The results of the two recent Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) Speed Monitoring events are interpreted
within the context of additional evidence including the views of both residents and visitors. The DOT
Guidelines Setting Local Speed Limits Circular 01/2013 is used to inform the report.

THE CONTEXT - THE NATURE OF THE WIDFORD AND SWINBROOK LANES

Swinbrook:

“Swinbrook is about 2 miles east of Burford on the north side of the River Windrush away from all main
roads and can only be reached along country lanes”. Oxfordshire villages website, 2017

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Enagﬁszﬂﬁrook and Widford Feb 2018 18



CMDE11

The lane through Swinbrook for which a 20mph limit is now being requested (referred to as the Village
Lane for the purposes of this report) is a narrow, single-track lane where residents, visitors and tourists
walk in the lane itself. In keeping with such a rural environment there are no road-side footpaths or
pavements, although there are occasional grass verges which provide important safe places for walkers
whenever a vehicle passes. Extensive erosion of these verges by cars, vans and HGVs has not only
reduced the amount of safe space for walkers but also provides a false impression of road width and road
conditions, further encouraging inappropriate speed - with road users frequently driving at 30mph within
inches of pedestrians.

e The Village Lane has multiple single-track blind bends with restricted visibility, very few places that are
wide enough for 2 vehicles to pass unless both vehicles mount the verges - and is regularly used by
many vulnerable road users including residents accessing their homes or visiting neighbours and
tourists and local visitors including families with young children, cyclists, horse riders, and dog walkers

e The local authorities encourage tourists and visitors to come to walk the Village Lanes, including
publishing details on several information websites, widely advertised in many tourist guides - and
furthermore promoting walks through the village lanes with the provision of on-line maps as a
recommended countryside walk.

e Swinbrook is a popular tourist destination due to it’s historic links with the Mitford family and the popular
Swan Inn, which attracts many diners and hotel guests — many of whom will be first time visitors and
tend to walk the Village Lane.

e Hence it is not unusual to round a bend or drive over the brow of a hill and suddenly come across a
single dog walker, a family pushing babies in buggies, horse riders or a conducted tour of up to 15
people walking on the Village Lane.

Photograph Swinbrook 1

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Linﬁs@%n?r&k and Widford Feb 2018 19



CMDE11

Photograph Swinbrook 2

(Please see further photographs in Appendix 2)

Widford:

The residents’ survey indicated that 93% of Parish residents supported the reduction of the speed limit
through Widford.

We therefore strongly support the present application to reduce it to 30mph for the following reasons:

o The road through Widford is frequently used by cyclists, dog walkers and families following a well
publicised circular walk (see photos below and in Appendix 2)

e The following link is the recommended map which encourages visitors to visit and walk along the
Widford road.
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/environmentandplanning/c
ountryside/walksandrides/westoxwalks/cwwindrushmapl.pdf

e Widford is a small hamlet located around a road junction on a narrow lane. Nearby is St Oswalds
Church, a medieval building with significant wall paintings, this is a very popular tourist site which is
heavily promoted.

e The road junction at Widford is a blind exit, it is extremely difficult to exit, especially when traffic is
travelling at speed. Some of the houses in Widford have their car parking facility on the other side
of the lane, residents therefore need to cross regularly by foot.

The DOT states that it is government policy that a 30 mph speed limit should be the norm in villages. Traffic
advisory leaflet 01/04 (DfT 2004) suggests a set of reasonable minimum criteria for a speed limit of 30 mph
but it also states that when the character of a village falls outside this definition, local authorities are
encouraged to use their discretion to decide whether this speed limit is appropriate. We strongly support
that this is the case in Widford, as this is a tourist attraction in an AONB and the lane is used by large
numbers of vulnerable road users.

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Erﬁgﬁsz@rook and Widford Feb 2018 20



CMDE11

Photograph Widford 3

Photograph Widford 4

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Linli%@%n?r%k and Widford Feb 2018

21



CMDE11

THE CONTEXT - OTHER POINTS OF REFERENCE:

The World Health Organisation (WHO 2017) argues strongly that 20mph limits are
required for authorities to meet “Duty of Care” responsibilities and recommend a speed
limit of 30km/h (19mph) when “roads provide possible conflicts between car and
unprotected users”( WHO 2017:9).

e Visitors are encouraged to come to walk through our lanes in both villages, not only by necessity
but also as a tourist attraction and these visitors include many elderly walkers and young children.
We believe that this requires some consideration for their safety during their visit, as well as the
safety of local residents.

e In Parish Council (PC) meetings residents have frequently expressed concern about the safety of
visitors, residents and especially children walking these lanes because of the increasing volume
and speed of traffic through the Swinbrook and Widford parish.

e Residents have raised the need “to do something” before a serious incident may occur. Recent
records, kept by the Parish Council Clerk list many near-misses and incidents including an
overturned car during 2017 requiring attendance by emergency services.

e The introduction of a 20 mph limit is therefore very important in terms of Duty of Care, to encourage
drivers to drive with due consideration of the shared nature of these lanes.

Traffic Authorities are encouraged to consider the introduction of more 20mph limits to create a safer
environment and improve the quality of life in a community (Department of Transport (DOT) 2013).

) The DOT 2013 guidelines state: “If a rural road is below A or B classification and there is a risk to
vulnerable road users then it should be classified as a local access road ......... ”

It is our opinion that this condition is met, and OCC confirmed at a recent meeting that this is indeed the
classification. When a road is classified as a local access road the DOT guidelines recommend that the
wishes and needs of the local community are considered to be of paramount importance when considering
a reduction in speed limits.

VIEWS OF RESIDENTS AND VISITORS

In response to discussions at Parish Council Meetings two research surveys have been conducted by a
group of residents to identify the views of i) local residents ii) visitors to the village to reducing the present
speed limits. The raw data for both surveys are available for inspection.

RESIDENTS’ VIEWS : survey of households in Swinbrook and Widford

At the Village Traffic Meeting on 25" May 2017, following the support offered by Anthony Kirkwood
(Assistant Principal Engineer, Traffic Safety and Accident Prevention, Oxford CC) and Neil Owen
(Oxfordshire County Councillor) three key proposals and options were discussed. Both of the guest County
officials indicated that our parish needs to respond urgently to the increasing traffic volume and to consider
the options for safer and calmer roads.

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Eﬁg@sz&rook and Widford Feb 2018 22



CMDE11

The aim of this survey was to seek the opinion of a large representative sample of
parishioners as to whether they agreed or disagreed with the three proposals and to
provide a summary of the data for the PC so they could act in the best interests of our
community and with respect for the views expressed. The results summarized below are
based on the 85% of households in the parish who responded to this survey, either in
writing or in person. This is an extremely high response rate for such surveys and
demonstrates the strength of local feeling on the issue.

A brief summary of the survey follows. A more detailed account of methodology is in
Appendix 3

Methods

The three key proposals from the Parish Council Traffic Meeting were presented in writing or by personal
communication as follows:

1. Are you supportive of the proposal that Swinbrook and Widford Parish Council should move forward with
an application for a 20mph speed limit to replace the current 30 mph limit through the village?

RESULT: YES: 86% NO: 14%
2. Are you supportive that this proposal be supplemented with an application to additionally reduce the
speed down from 60mph to 40mph on all other village approach roads (e.g from the A40, from Burford via
Widford and past South Lawn from the A361)?

RESULT: YES: 93% NO: 7%

3. Finally, are you supportive that the Parish Council also put together a plan whereby Swinbrook may be
designated as an official "Shared Use" lane at some time in the future?

This would fall under a Department of Transport use order, known as a " Quiet Lane" policy and is
described in detail by the CPRE via the attached link.

www.cpre.org.uk/resources/transport/roads/item/download/378

RESULT: YES: 84% NO: 16%

The many reasons given for the “Yes" responses focus on serious concerns about the safety of residents,
visitors and notably children in our villages, the need to remind drivers of the risks their vehicles pose to
people who live and tourists who walk here - and to encourage drivers to be more responsible and
respectful of our community. In addition, there is a strong sense that we need to protect this very special
recreational and walking environment from the impact of advancing urban surrounds and increasing traffic
volumes.

Residents’ Views: Conclusions

A clear majority of the households who responded voted in favour of all three proposals. It was
recommended that steps should be taken to investigate and implement these changes as swiftly as

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Lin%afg@inz&k and Widford Feb 2018 23


http://www.cpre.org.uk/resources/transport/roads/item/download/378%22%20%5Ct%20%22_blank

CMDE11

possible.

One concern raised by the PC was that the cost of implementing changes to the speed limit would result in
an increase in The Parish Precept, but decisions were made at a subsequent parish meeting that this would
not be necessary.

THE VIEWS OF VISITORS

After discussion at the Parish Council of the results of the residents’ survey it was decided to conduct a
short survey of the views of visitors to Swinbrook. The survey was carried out by 2 residents, who are both
experienced research scientists, over a combined period of 9.5 hours. A total of 453 signatures in support
of the road speed limit reductions were received as follows:

One survey took place on the 2 weekends either side of the second OCC Traffic Monitoring event i.e. Sat
13th /Sun 14th May and Sat 20th/Sun 21st May; it is of note the weather was not good during 3 of these
dates and the numbers of visitors was lower than expected on a fine weather weekend..

Both researchers were located at the same point in the village (outside the Swinbrook Village Hall ). The
times chosen for this activity were approximately 1 to 2 hour time slots between 11.30 hrs and 15.30 hrs.
They did not stop cyclists.

Visitors who walked by were asked if they had concerns about the speed of the traffic during their walks
and if they would be happy to sign a petition to indicate their support for our application to reduce the
existing speed limit. A copy of the petition is in Appendix 4.

In total 210 supporting signatures were collected over 9.5 hours. Not one person approached refused to
sign, everyone was in wholehearted agreement with the petition.

Some typical comments:
“These roads are very narrow and cars just don’t slow down for walkers”
“l can’t see why anyone would not want to sign this petition”

“These are country lanes, very narrow and unsuited to existing speeds, extraordinary dangerous, please
don’t wait for a bad accident to correct this”

This represents just over 21 people per hour walking past Swinbrook Village Hall over the collection
period, this is equivalent to 1 person every 2 minutes and 50 seconds.

During the data collection period there were 2 incidents: The first was a collision between 2 cars, near the
corner by Swinbrook Cottage. The second was more serious; a group of 4 adults, one of whom was
carrying a very young infant in a chest sling, walked past. They were shocked and very angry having just
been narrowly missed by a car driving past at very high speed; they were extremely keen to sign the
petition.

A second survey was conducted in the form of unmanned petitions : over the month of May 13" to the end
of June a further 243 supporting signatures were collected at the un-manned petitions in the entrance to
The Swan Inn and Widford and Swinbrook Churches, these are popular destinations for visitors.

There is therefore evidence of overwhelming support from visitors of a reduction in speed limit in

Swinbrook and Widford. The raw data is available for inspection if required.

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Enagﬁsﬁrgrook and Widford Feb 2018 24



CMDE11

TRAFFIC SPEED SURVEYS IN SWINBROOK AND WIDFORD PARISH

In response to requests from Swinbrook PC, Oxford County Council (OCC) has carried out 2 Speed
surveys, the first in 2016 and the second in 2017.

There follows an interpretation and opinion of the traffic speed data provided from these OCC Speed
Monitoring exercises provided in response to the open invitation for comments (19th June 2017) from the
Parish Council to local residents.

The Dept of Transport Guidelines (Circular 01/2013 )“ Setting Local Speed Limits” “ has been used to
inform this interpretation and is offered within the context of the nature of the village road and the additional
survey evidence of the views of both residents and visitors.

The objective of the speed monitoring survey was explicit: it was not intended to evaluate whether or not
there is a speeding issue through the village with drivers breaking the law with respect to the current speed
limit of 30 mph, but was to provide data to evaluate whether or not a 20mph limit could be introduced
(without the need for additional traffic calming measures) under Government issued DOT guidance.

Data Interpretation for Swinbrook
OCC: First Speed Survey - May 2016

This initial speed survey (OCC:May 2016) has shown (despite the camera’s location: one between a blind
bend and a road junction, another on a blind bend) that 119 cars exceeded the 30mph speed limit over the
7 day trial and an average of 612 cars per day was recorded by one of the cameras.

OCC: Speed Survey - May 2017.

This data is from a camera located at: Court Cottage East and Court Cottage West. Please note this
location is as shown in the above photograph 2.

e The mean speed was 23.5/ 23.9mph (depending on direction of travel)

Comment: Research from the DOT indicates that “If the mean speed is around 24 mph introducing a 20
mph speed limit, even with signs alone, is likely to lead to general compliance with the new speed limit”
(DOT 2013)

e Although a minority of cars were driving at excessive speed 85% of the cars were travelling
at or below 29.8 mph

Comment: The 85" % percentile data is within the current speed limit, this indicates that the majority of
drivers comply with the statutory speed limit and are therefore perhaps more likely to also comply with a
lower speed limit of 20mph

Additional data over the week of recording:
e 308 cars exceeded the 30mph speed limit, this is an average of 44 cars every day exceeding the
30mph speed limit.
e 35 cars travelled at speeds between 36 and 41 mph, 5 cars between 41 and 46 mph and one car
between 46 and 51 mph

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Lin%afg@inggek and Widford Feb 2018 25



CMDE11

Comment: 15% of cars are driving at excessive speeds. This is a single-track road with no footpath and
restricted visibility, It is used by vulnerable road users, such as pedestrians, families with young children,
cyclists, horse riders and dog walkers.

There are also 4 drive way entrances at this point, all of the drive ways have very restricted visibility. Due to
the narrowness of the lane it is not possible to leave and enter the driveways without making several
manoeuvres

e Crucially the overall mean and 85" % percentile speed is within the range identified by DOT
research as being conducive to driver compliance if a lower speed limit of 20mph is introduced.

e Therefore, according to the DOT guidelines the results of this speed monitoring exercise strongly
support a case for reducing the present speed limit from 30 to 20 mph.)

To conclude, a review of the speed data collected indicates a minority of cars driving at speeds in excess of
the legal limit. All of these were driving at a dangerous speed for the type of road.

The overall mean speed is within the range identified by DOT research as being conducive to driver
compliance if a lower speed limit of 20mph is introduced. According to the DOT guidelines the results of this
speed monitoring exercise strongly support a case for reducing the present speed limit from 30 to 20 mph.

OVERALL CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

This paper presents a strong case for reducing the speed limits in the village by clarifying
a context for Swinbrook and Widford and the nature of the community. It also draws on
evidence from surveys of the attitudes of residents and visitors and provides some
analysis of recent OCC speed test results.

We believe that the introduction of a 20 mph limit in Swinbrook and a 30 mph limit in the centre of Widford
will encourage more considerate, careful and hence safer driving and provide important information to
drivers about the nature of the road.

Data from the 2 local surveys (Residents and Visitors) indicates the majority of residents, tourists and local
visitors recognise that the current speed and volume of traffic through these lanes pose a risk to the safety
of unprotected, vulnerable road users. By adding their names to this proposal they appeal to the authorities
to reduce the speed and help to keep them safe. While there is no guarantee that all drivers will drive
responsibly, these speed reductions will help to improve driver awareness and we ask that this request be
recognised, in keeping with WHO recommendations, as a Duty of Care to all who use these lanes.

REFERENCES:

1. Setting Local Speed Limits DOT Circular 01/2013

2. Managing Speed WHO 2017
http://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/10665/254760/1/ WHO-NMH-NVI-17.7-enqg.pdf?ua=1

Authors: Michael Bloor, Christine Standen, Prof Peter Hammond, and Eileen Boothroyd.

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Eﬁg@sﬁ%rook and Widford Feb 2018 26


http://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/10665/254760/1/WHO-NMH-NVI-17.7-eng.pdf?ua=1

CMDE11

Feb 16" 2018
Acknowledgements: We should like to acknowledge the incredible support and enthusiasm received from

so many of our neighbours and parishioners over the past 2 years.

APPENDICES

SHARE

76\4

APPENDIX 1: SWARD AIMS

Aims:
1. To create a safer environment and improve the quality of life in the community
2. To encourage walking, cycling, horse riding and the considerate use of the road as a shared facility
3. To create a sense of ownership of the scheme and encourage responsible driving
4. To discourage use of the road as a “rat run”

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Lin%a'g@ing&k and Widford Feb 2018 27



CMDE11

APPENDIX 2: PHOTOGRAPHS

SWINBROOK

Proposal to Reduce the Speed E)rﬁgesaﬁljrook and Widford Feb 2018

28



CMDE11

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Lin%aﬂ%naak and Widford Feb 2018

29



-

WIDFO

RD

CMDE11

Proposal to Reduce the Speed E)rﬁgesar@rook and Widford Feb 2018

30



CMDE11

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Lin%%@na%k and Widford Feb 2018

31



CMDE11

APPENDIX 3:

SUMMARY REPORT OF THE SWINBROOK AND WIDFORD RESIDENTS’ SURVEY

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Enagﬁsﬁ&rook and Widford Feb 2018

32



CMDE11

A CAMPAIGN FOR SAFER LANES

Ao

@& SHARE

i 4

August 2016

Introduction and Background

Parishioners have reported their concerns about the speed and aggressive attitudes of certain drivers
traveling through our villages to the Parish Council (PC) over many years. There is recent evidence of
drivers failing to exercise appropriate judgement with regard to their speed whilst negotiating the specific
road conditions in the parish, of cars exceeding the speed limit on a daily basis, being driven recklessly
past pedestrians and causing damage to stone walls and road-side verges. There have also been several
reported accidents and incidents; one of these, near the crossroads by the cricket club, resulted in a car
overturning and required the attendance of the emergency services.

At the Village Traffic Meeting on May 25", following the support and encouragement offered by Anthony
Kirkwood (Assistant Principal Engineer, Traffic Safety and Accident Prevention, Oxford CC) and Neil Owen
(Oxfordshire County Councillor) three key proposals and options were discussed. These proposals now
need to be considered for further action.

Both of the guest County officials indicated that our parish needs to respond urgently to the increasing
traffic volume and to consider the options for safer and calmer roads.

Aims

The aim of this survey was to seek the opinion of a large representative sample of parishioners as to
whether they agree or disagree with the three proposals and to provide a summary of the data for the PC
so they can act in the best interests of our community and with respect for the views expressed.

Methods

The three key proposals from the Traffic Meeting were presented in writing or by personal communication
as follows:

1. Are you supportive of the proposal as discussed on the 25th, that Swinbrook and Widford Parish Council
should move forward with an application for a 20 mph speed limit to replace the current 30 mph limit
through the village? A copy of the rationale for this proposal (as presented during the meeting on May 25”‘)
was provided.

2. Are you supportive that this proposal be supplemented with an application to additionally reduce the
speed down from 60mph to 40 mph on all other village approach roads (e.g from the A40, from Burford via

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Lin%afg@ing&k and Widford Feb 2018 33



CMDE11

Widford and past South Lawn from the A361)?

3. Finally, are you supportive that the Parish Council also put together a plan whereby Swinbrook may be
designated as an official "Shared Use" lane at some time in the future? This would fall under a Department
of Transport use order, known as a " Quiet Lane" policy and is described in detail by the CPRE via the
attached link.

www.cpre.org.uk/resources/transport/roads/item/download/378

Data collection was initially undertaken by sending individual e-mails to everyone on the PC email list
during early June. PC members were not included in the initial request as it was recognized they would be
able to express the views of their own households by nature of their positions on the committee.

As this is not intended to be a referendum, for practical reasons and to be fair to those households for
whom the PC contact list only included one occupant, it was decided to summarise the data by household.

The number of households responding to the initial email by the end of June was extremely high (over 70%
response); this is an indication of how strongly residents feel about the issues. However, in order to be as
thorough as possible, repeated efforts were made throughout July and early August to seek a response
from all previous non-respondents and to make contact with a number of additional households who were
not represented on the original PC email list. The decision was also made to include the views of all PC
members during this “second wave” approach.

The deadline for receiving responses for this report was set as August 20" 2016, to provide sufficient time
for all new contacts to respond but without further delaying this project unduly. It was decided that a brief
summary report should be distributed to the PC members by the end of August, so that work can start on
the proposals during autumn 2016. Any responses received after this date will be forwarded to the traffic
sub-committee.

Results
A more detailed report including the rationale and background to this survey, plus a comprehensive

overview of specific comments and requests received from all respondents, is in preparation. Further
details will be presented to the PC when these findings are discussed with us at the first suitable PC
meeting.

Sample size

¢ No. of households contacted in June (based on the PC email list at that time) = 39
e Total no. of households contacted by early August = 53
e Total no. of households responded by August 20" =45 (i.e. 85 % of those contacted)

Data Analysis

A total of 43 households responded to the specific questions and provided answers from themselves - or on
behalf of their households - and are therefore included in this analysis. Only one of these households
indicated a small difference of opinion within their household and this is captured below in the Results
section.

A further two households responded but have not (as yet) specifically answered the questions, therefore

although both have stated they would support measures for safer lanes, their data has not been included in
the present analysis.

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Enagﬁsgrgrook and Widford Feb 2018 34


http://www.cpre.org.uk/resources/transport/roads/item/download/378%22%20%5Ct%20%22_blank

CMDE11

The number of households who either agree or disagree with each of the three proposals is as follows:
Proposal 1 (20mph)
Yes = 37 households (86%)
No = 6 households (14%)
Proposal 2 (60 mph down to 40mph)
Yes = 40 (93 %)
No =3 (7%)
Proposal 3 (Quiet Lane)
Yes = 36 (84 %)
No =7 (16 %)

Two of the respondents who voted “ No” to a 20 mph limit advised that whilst they felt they could not
support the costs and time associated with fighting for a 20mph limit, both stated that they would support
other measures to encourage the traffic to drive slowly and more considerately through the village; they
both suggested a 20’s Plenty Campaign because this could be set up more swiftly.

Several of the respondents who voted “ Yes” to a 20 mph limit suggested that this limit should start at
Claybutts and extend to just beyond Payne’s Farm. Two of the “Yes” respondents highlighted that the 20

mph limit might not be necessary throughout the entire length of the village.

The majority of respondents from Widford suggested that a 30 mph (or even a 20 mph) would be most
appropriate for the stretch of the main road that passes close to the houses in Widford.

One household reported support of Proposal 2 from one respondent but ambivalence on Proposal 2 from
the second respondent.

The many reasons given for the “ Yes “ responses focus on serious concerns about the safety of residents,
visitors and notably children in our villages, the need to remind drivers of the risks their vehicles pose to
people who live here and to encourage drivers to be more responsible and respectful of our community. In
addition there is a strong sense that we need to protect this very special environment from the impact of
advancing urban surrounds.

The main reasons cited for the “No “ Responses are as follows:

Costs and possible impact on The Parish Precept

The respondent did not see any problem with speeding or driving behaviour through the village

“One would potentially be criminalized on a regular basis whilst traveling above the new speed limits”

The measure would not be effective and the police would not be supportive

A Quiet Lane would be difficult to implement and would not be practical; several respondents expressed
concern that Swinbrook would not meet the required criteria

“Car drivers who need to should be allowed to drive through the village, residents should not control the
road “

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Lin%afg@ingrgek and Widford Feb 2018 35



CMDE11

Interestingly when the data is reviewed by distribution across the Parish, residents living in the centre of the
village in either Swinbrook or Widford were more likely to vote “ Yes” which suggests, perhaps not
surprisingly, that residents who witness the every day near-misses and other incidents when walking or
driving out of their homes into the lane, appear to be the most motivated for change.

The PC members did not vote in quite the same way as the parishioners, largely due to the PC concerns
with the practicalities and unknown factors regarding the Quiet Lane concept.

Conclusions

A clear majority of the households who have responded have voted in favour of all three proposals. Steps
should be taken therefore to investigate and implement these changes as swiftly as possible.

Recommendations

Based on the clear majority from this large representative sample, the PC should undertake the necessary
steps to implement Proposals 1 and 2 in the immediate future and to initiate a parallel plan to research the
opportunity for a Quiet Lane, perhaps starting by consulting with other communities who have already
achieved this status.

We understand that implementing these proposals will involve a lot of work, will be extremely challenging
and will inevitably need a highly committed team to negotiate and drive things forward.

17.Based on feedback received, we would like to suggest that a Safer Lanes Sub-Committee be formed and
should be led by at least 1 (or ideally 2) of those PC members who are the most committed to this cause,
together with the Parish Clerk and an appropriate number of other volunteers from the parish.

18. The sub-committee should consider all residents’ concerns and the feedback received, particularly concerning
the unique nature of our lanes.

19. Parishioners have suggested many other useful and constructive initiatives during the survey process and
these could be considered immediately. Certain ideas could be implemented rapidly, without any changes to
the speed limit or the status of the lane. These are included in Appendix 1.

Costs

One concern raised by the PC is that the cost of implementing changes to the speed limit will result in an
increase in The Parish Precept. We would like to suggest that the Traffic Sub-committee should be able to
raise funds towards these costs, to be managed by the PC members on this committee, so as to ensure
minimal impact on The Parish Precept; more than £3250.00 has already been pledged in spontaneous
donations during the survey process without our asking as yet for any contributions.

Acknowledgements:

I should very much like to acknowledge the important contribution made to the completion of this survey by
Mr Michael Bloor and the assistance | have received from others, including Eliza Bell, Sue and Robin
Meech, Johanna Butt and Eileen Boothroyd in order to make contact with so many of our parishioners.

Christine Standen August 2016

Actions for immediate consideration and implementation - no changes required to the current
status of our Parish lanes

Proposal to Reduce the Speed E@g@s@%rook and Widford Feb 2018 36



CMDE11

1. Improvements are needed to road signage

Many respondents have commented on this need. Currently the signage in the Parish does not provide
appropriate information for drivers. There are no warnings to drivers that they should expect to see walkers,
children, horses or cyclists on our lanes - and appropriate guidance is lacking for drivers that they are
entering a single-track village lane with passing spaces and blind bends. There is also minimal information
to advise that Swinbrook is unsuitable for HGVs / information with regard to weight limit.

In Widford there are no signs at all to indicate that drivers are entering a village and this needs to be
addressed.

Therefore the parish needs to consider the use of appropriate signage, especially for those drivers who are
unfamiliar with our lanes, to help them to drive more considerately. We understand that a careful balance
needs to be struck - and that councils are trying to reduce the clutter of road signage, particular in urban
areas where it can cause distraction and confusion - but signage to provide warnings and to improve road
safety for both driver and pedestrian should be paramount. Almost two-thirds of all fatal road traffic
accidents in Britain occur on rural roads (DOT 2015) and the Guild of Experienced Motorists’ guidance
indicates that signage and other local “ clues” are important keys to ensure safe driving in rural areas.

2. Implement a “20’s Plenty” Campaign

Many respondents were supportive of a “20’s Plenty” campaign as seen in Gloucestershire; their main
reasons include the fact that a change to the speed limits will take a long time and this campaign would be
a way to start to improve the environment immediately. It was also suggested that parishioners could start
to drive at 20 mph ASAP.

3. Re-build the eroded verges and introduce specific passing spaces

Signage required for Swinbrook as a single-track lane with passing spaces. Repair the erosion of the
verges and return the lane to a single track by re-instating the damaged verges. Many parishioners offered
to contribute to this themselves, have provided information and costs for the import of suitable soil, and
several have offered to physically work on any such project - including one of our most senior parishioners
who has offered to use a pickaxe and a paintbrush to help to make our roads a safer place.

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Lin%afg@ingr&k and Widford Feb 2018 37



CMDE11

APPENDIX 4 VISITORS’ PETITION

ol

Petition for Safer Lanes in the Swinbrook & Widford
Parish

To keep our lanes safe for walkers, cyclists and riders

For the Attention of Anthony Kirkwood, Oxfordshire County Council (0.C.C.)

We, the undersigned, petition Oxfordshire Council to reduce the speed of vehicles traveling the lanes through
Swinbrook and Widford in order to improve road safety for the many hundreds of vulnerable road users and
tourists who walk, cycle or ride along these popular rural lanes every week.

We call upon 0.C.C. to:

1. Reduce the speed limit through the village of Swinbrook to 20 mph (currently 30mph)

2. Reduce the speed limit through the village of Widford to 30 mph (currently 60 mph)

3. Reduce the speed limits on the narrow /single track country lanes approaching the village from
60 mph to 40 mph.

Background to this Petition:

Parishioners and visitors have reported their concerns about the speed and attitudes of certain drivers
traveling through our villages over many years. There is now evidence of cars exceeding the speed limit on a
daily basis, being driven recklessly past pedestrians, cyclists and horses - and of drivers failing to exercise
appropriate judgement with regard to their speed whilst negotiating these narrow, single-track roads and blind
bends. There have been several reported accidents and incidents; one of these, near the crossroads by the
cricket club, resulted in a car overturning and required the attendance of the emergency services.

The lanes through our villages form part of a popular, recommended route for walkers of all ages, notably for
families with small children and dog-walkers. Many residents and visitors walk along these lovely lanes every
day - and due to the absence of footpaths all pedestrians, children and animals share the road with vehicles. The
lanes are also part of a very popular Cotswolds Cycle Route.

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Erﬁgesaé)rook and Widford Feb 2018 38



CMDE11

This petition is being conducted as part of the Parish Campaign for Safer Lanes and is sponsored by the
Swinbrook and Widford Action Group for Responsible Driving (SWARD). Please return sheets to Lisa Harrop
(Parish Clerk)

Proposal to Reduce the Speed Lin%a'%ingr@k and Widford Feb 2018

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 12

Division(s): Witney South & Central

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT - 12 APRIL 2018

A4095 BURFORD ROAD WITNEY - PROPOSED SHARED USE
FOOTWAY / CYCLE TRACK AND TOUCAN CROSSING

Report by Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Introduction

1. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation to provide
a shared use footway/cycle-track and toucan crossing on the A4095 Burford
Road in the area between Springfield Park and Tower Hill, in Witney.

Background

2. The above proposal has been put forward as part of a proposed residential
development on the north side of the A4095 Burford Road. Plans showing the
proposals are provided at Annex 1 and 2.

Consultation

3. Formal consultation on the proposal was carried out between 14 February
and 16 March 2018. A public notice was placed in the Witney Gazette
newspaper and sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley Police,
the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, West Oxfordshire District
Council, Witney Town Council Councils and local County Councillors. Street
notices were also placed in the vicinity of the proposed crossing location and
letters sent to adjacent premises.

4, Two responses were received. An objection from a member of the public
which, however, did not give any grounds for the objection and one in support
from the Windrush Bike Project, which nevertheless raised queries on some
aspects of the design and also wider issues about cycle provision in the area.
These responses are summarised at Annex 2 with copies of the full
responses available for inspection by County Councillors.

Response to objection and other comments

5. The objection of the member of the public is noted.

6. The Windrush Bike Project, while welcoming the principle of provision for
cycling, queried the design of the cycle track where it crossed side road
junctions, noting that this did not conform with the cycling design standards
recently issued by the County Council. While it is accepted that this is the
case, the design of this specific scheme predates the issuing of these

Page 97



10.

CMDE12

standards and it is not considered feasible to amend the design at this stage,
noting also that layouts of the type currently proposed typically have very
good safety records.

The wider concerns raised about the integration of the proposed scheme with
existing cycle provision and future plans for additional provision on the Burford
road are also noted but it should be stressed that the current proposals do not
in any way constrain opportunities for further provision for cyclists here as and
when funding to deliver the latter becomes available.

How the Project supports LTP4 Objectives
The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic.
Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue)

Funding for the proposed bus stops has been provided from the developers of
land adjacent to the A4095 Burford Road.

RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet Member for the Environment is RECOMMENDED to approve
proposals to provide a shared use footway/cycle-track and toucan
crossing on the A4095 Burford Road in the area between Springfield
Park and Tower Hill, in Witney as advertised.

OWEN JENKINS
Director for Infrastructure Delivery

Background papers: Plan of proposed shared use footway / cycletrack and

toucan crossing
Consultation responses

Contact Officers: Hugh Potter 07766 998704

April 2018

Page 98



bb °90Ed

B4047 Burford Road

& |
S !
N

. N

_— ﬂ_;ﬂ/ﬂ/—_a;zj-—tﬁm/ﬂ/ﬂ/ﬂ/_:—:———

FUTURE DEVEROPMENT SITE

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT SITE

L aumng

LTI T TR T Ay Ty F T T T TL T T T T T

I: (010 Le
C158 023

A4085 Burford R

2.4 % 20m Jurciion
Wittty Sptay

u

e sy

. 9,395 98312 . _sT
R o=

w05 — w

o | ARk ERICK pyay
jad
@ | ' \ | !
- | ' | | | '
| | | | , "
| | | B N
==l = '
Y A S g i} | L
e e 18

S
g sT v STV

20 M gy,

T ioeog,
E Vipy
i

T

[ s
7 TOME uar

98,32

w3y T saay ‘
STONE gy
|

| [ | |
[ Y B i S/
e

L

Zaung

TR

e

o

F

&
E
bl
g

Existing, fomd Surface Ove- Which New
Smadmarkings A o oo nsal od

Ny

le ! Factuars

Naw Reed Paverant

wwad Paverant {Sermaatio]

Secanstucted Pedesr an Ref.ge slanc

New Pegestian Reruge (sl

fiakway Vere ¢ Reinsater et of Exist g Verae

Batler Slope {11in 2 Unless Shown Oinersiss)

—
m
p
]

Deveiapment site Bourdary

1. This drawing presents the, "Gensrel Arangemert’, o7 e new ste
NG emeTIENCy AncesERR RGN 0 AETvins te propes;
residen‘ial development on lend to af Sufar

witney

2. Tris drswing shows tha off 5te nighay works 113t wil reqLine 3
278 agreement wit Cxfardstine Courty Coun |

3 Theextents of s papasse nig way bauncany tn be addsd 0 s

Teyou: one agreed vt Ciefordsh 2 County Cours

T | Zr [Temnieel st 1 s0e W[ s

amsncrint e | chen,

LAND & DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING LTD

18TrogmoreRoad  Tel 44 (351242 437500
Hemel -empstesy  Fex! 4481001262 437550
Hertfordshire Envsll o ske ok
HE3 ST ikt o sk ok

Ui e Kingierr

3

FLAND NORTH OF BURFORD ROAD
WITNEY, OXFORDSHIRE

* TECHNICAL SUBMISSION

Drewing ik

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
3278 HIGHWAY WORKS
SHEET 10F 2

o e Craman Cae Sppes Qae
TWR 240747 |GT 280747 |GT 284047
St et Cirerin

1:250 A1 Metres

Froes o Craning e

890177 51-02.dwg.

Crearg i e
51-02-01 P1




CMDE12

Page 100



[OT abed

LEGEND
! [ Y B / ! Eitin a
/‘\ i | . " | I Homdmarkings A e e neval od
| L . i 7 I Hew Csele { Faotuis
! - - == I ' i
/ 4 [ The Windrush L ! ; ‘ e Rood Faverert

(PH)

New Reed Pavere;

sl ucled Pedes!r an Reluge 18 and

Hew Padestien Refue 1slad

Higray Verge ! Reinssterent of Exist ng Verge
N
e T T

Bacter Siope (1 n 2 Uniess Shown Omeniss)

Develpnen! Silz Bouris

| REERCENE

P =S Touzar Crossing Trafic Sgnals

1. This dianwing presents lhe, "Generel Arrangeriert’, o e new sl
aNC emergency accesses required 1o senvice the proposad
esidennial development on fend bo 7 Harl of 3 furd Roed,
ety

2 TS drany shows
Eaty

3 Theester
Izyous oe agresd with ¢

€ 8urnng

I T B

R | pae amencniant orenn | oren. [ mara

o
i ) |
i -
= [
[ _ _ Iy
w o S
LAMND & DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING LTD

HTagmas Rol Tel 441 (301442 437500
. 1 . Hemel cerpsiasd  Fex 44 [ 1447 43050
| e e - Harrioenre Eral edrskn uk
AR T e Ve Sy Sy e — HE3 ERT el 1k
TN N iy T Urizes Aingocer
Glert N
™ e ny
B o A E-.
s i

S e — o ) : . s Freiect T
— ‘. W —-— ‘ : - LAND NORTH OF BURFORD ROAD
e e 1 WITNEY, OXFORDSHIRE

=

e

P e )
SN

“+ TECHNICAL SUBMISSION

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
5278 HIGHWAY WORKS
SHEET20QF 2

e et Chackid  Tale Eprowei Dale
TWR 240747 [GT 250717 | GT 2841017

£ 8urning

i o [—
1:250 Al Metres
et Crnemg e
890177 51-02.dwg

Ireing e he

51-02-02 P1

7Area D ] ‘




20T abed

CMDE12

ANNEX 2

RESPONDENT

SUMMARISED COMMENTS

Windrush Bike Project

While welcoming additional provision for cyclists, we are concerned that the detailing of the scheme where the
cycletrack crosses side road junctions is not in accordance with current OCC advice, and also query how the proposed
provision fits into other existing provision on the Burford Road (which is on the south side of the road) and more
generally, on wider plans for cycling provision on this corridor.

Local Resident,
(Springfield Park, Witney)

Toucan Crossing - Object — no comment

Shared-Use Footway — Object — no comment




	Agenda
	4 Oxford: Various Streets in Barton and Risinghurst Area - {Proposed Waiting restrictionson Area - Proposed Waiting Restrictions
	5 Oxford: Mill Road and Godstow Road at Wovercote - Proposed Waiting Restrictions
	6 Oxford: Abbey Road and Cripley Place - Proposed Amendments to Waiting Restrictions and Residents Parking Spaces
	7 North Hinksey - B4044 West Way - Proposed Puffin Crossing
	8 Didcot: Collett and Hawksworth - Proposed Waiting Restrictions
	9 Proposed Waiting Restrictions Radley Station, Radley
	10 A420 at Buckland - Proposed Bus Stop Clearway
	11 Swinbrook and Widford - Proposed 20mph and 30mph Speed Limits
	12 A4095 Burford Road, Witney - Proposed Shared Use Footway/Cycle Track and Toucan Crossing

